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1                    P R O C E E D I N G S

2                     [NOVEMBER 15, 2016]

3                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  At this time, I'd

4 like to call to order the Tuesday, November 15th meeting of

5 the Franklin County Planning and Zoning Commission.

6              Scottie, will you please take roll.

7                        MS. EAGAN: Bill Evans?

8                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Here.

9                        MS.  EAGAN:  Jay Schultehenrich?

10                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Here.

11                        MS. EAGAN: Todd Boland?

12                        COMMISSIONER BOLAND:  Here.

13                        MS. EAGAN: Tim Reinhold?

14                        COMMISSIONER REINHOLD:  [Not

15 present.]

16                        MS. EAGAN:  Ray Cunio?

17                        COMMISSIONER CUNIO:  [Not present.]

18                        MS. EAGAN:  Tom Tobben?

19                        COMMISSIONER TOBBEN:  Here.

20                        MS. EAGAN:  Bill McLaren?

21                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Here.

22                        MS. EAGAN:  Stan Voss?

23                        COMMISSIONER VOSS:  Here.

24                        MS. EAGAN:  Dan Haire?

25                        COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Here.
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1                        MS. EAGAN: Russell McCreary?

2                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Here.

3                        MS. EAGAN:  And, Ron Williams?

4                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Here.

5                        MS. EAGAN:  Okay, we have a quorum.

6                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Thank you.

7              At this time, I will give the Planning and

8 Zoning Commissioners the opportunity to declare any

9 conflict, communication or relationship they may have had

10 that might influence their ability to consider today's

11 issues impartially.  [None]  No declarations.

12              So, Scottie, would you please give us the

13 presentation of the meeting procedures and exhibits.

14                        MS. EAGAN:  Tonight's Planning

15 Commission meeting is governed by the Franklin County

16 Unified Land Use Regulations of 2001.

17              Some matters on the agenda may be for action by

18 the Planning and Zoning Commission.  These matters do not

19 involve public hearing.  Other matters on the agenda require

20 public hearings under Missouri law.  If a matter involves a

21 public hearing, all individuals who desire to testify will

22 be given an opportunity to do so.

23              At this time, I would like to place into the

24 record these Regulations as Exhibit A, the official Zoning

25 Map as Exhibit B, the official Master Plan as Exhibit C, and
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1 the case file for each case as Exhibit D for all the cases

2 to be heard at this hearing.

3                        [Thereupon, evidence was marked

4                   for identification and presented for the

5                   record as Planning and Zoning Exhibits A,

6                   B, C, and D.]

7              All Old Business items on the agenda will be

8 dealt with first.

9              Once the Old Business issues have been taken

10 care of, each item of New Business will be opened.

11              As each case is opened, a staff report will

12 first be read to the Commission, followed by any questions

13 for the staff.

14              Then if anyone in the audience would like to

15 speak or comment on a file that is part of a public hearing,

16 they must first print their name on the sign-in sheet

17 provided, and then be sworn in by the Chairman.

18              When it is your turn to speak, you will come to

19 the front of the room to address the Commission and only the

20 Commission, not anyone in the audience, with your comments.

21              It is possible for the Commission to decide to

22 move a New Business issue to Old Business and vote on it the

23 same night.

24              At the conclusion of all questions, comments,

25 and discussion concerning each case, the Planning Commission
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1 will proceed.  Any final decision by the Planning Commission

2 concerning conditional use permits may be appealed to the

3 Board of Zoning Adjustment any time within 90 days.

4              Applications for such an appeal may be acquired

5 from the Department offices during normal business hours.

6                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Thank you.

7              All the Commissioners should have received a

8 copy of the October 18th minutes.  If there are no additions

9 or corrections, the Chair would entertain a motion to

10 approve them.

11                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  I'd make a

12 motion to approve the minutes.

13                        COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  I'll second it.

14                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  We have a motion and

15 a second to approve the October 18th minutes.  All those in

16 favor signify by saying aye.

17                        COMMISSIONER VOSS:  Aye.

18                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Aye.

19                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Aye.

20                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Aye.

21                        COMMISSIONER BOLAND:  Aye.

22                        COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Aye.

23                        COMMISSIONER TOBBEN:  Aye.

24                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Aye.

25                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Aye.
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1                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Opposed?  [None]

2              The minutes are approved.

3              Communication and Visitors Comments.  Is there

4 anyone present wishing to address the Commission? [None]

5              If not, we'll move on to Old Business.  File

6 160204 Robert C. Muckler.

7              Scottie, will you please give us the details.

8                        MS. EAGAN:  This is File 160204 for

9 Robert Muckler.

10              The Applicant requests to rezone one parcel

11 from Suburban Development to Non-Urban and Agricultural.

12              The property is located off Highway OO,

13 approximately 3/10 mile north of Spring Valley Road, in

14 Boles Township.

15              The Facts:  The total area for the rezoning is

16 approximately 30 acres.

17              The zoning of this property is Suburban

18 Development.  The Applicant would like to rezone to

19 Non-Urban and Agricultural.

20              Sorry.  Number 3, I don't have it fixed on my

21 part.  I apologize.  So it should say:  Non-Urban and

22 Agricultural Zoning allows agricultural, recreational,

23 wildlife, forestry, open space, farming and related uses to

24 mix with low-density residential development.

25              The properties around the proposed site are
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1 zoned Suburban Development.

2              This property is approximately 1,000 feet north

3 of the city limits of Pacific.

4              This property is surrounded primarily by

5 low-density residential land and undeveloped land.

6              This property has access to Highway OO, which

7 is a State-maintained road.

8              The Applicant is not the current owner of the

9 property, but they do have a contract to purchase with the

10 current owner.

11              This property is located within Public Water

12 Supply District No. 3 boundaries.

13              Staff Comments:  The future land use map shows

14 this property as being non-urban.

15              Rezonings are allowed in our regulations due to

16 the ever-changing conditions that exist in the county and

17 elsewhere.  According to Article 14, Section 321, any such

18 change must promote the health, safety, morals, comfort, and

19 general welfare of Franklin County by conserving and

20 protecting property and building values, by securing the

21 most economical use of land and facilitating the adequate

22 provision of public improvements in accordance with the

23 Master Plan adopted by Franklin County.

24              The Review Committee Recommendation:  The

25 Review Committee recommended denial of this rezoning from
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1 Suburban Development to Non-Urban and Agricultural with

2 three in favor and zero opposed.

3                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Thank you.

4              Any discussion or questions?  [None.]  If not,

5 this is a rezoning.  So it is a recommendation to the County

6 Commission, who will hold a public hearing.

7              No discussion, no comments?  [None]

8              Chair would entertain a motion then to either

9 recommend denial of this as recommended by the Review

10 Committee.

11                        COMMISSIONER HAIRE: I recommend that

12 we deny the recommendation for a rezoning.

13                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Second.

14                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  We have a motion and

15 a second to recommend denial of File 160204 rezoning.  All

16 in favor signify by saying aye.

17                        COMMISSIONER VOSS:  Aye.

18                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Aye.

19                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Aye.

20                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Aye.

21                        COMMISSIONER BOLAND:  Aye.

22                        COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Aye.

23                        COMMISSIONER TOBBEN:  Aye.

24                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Aye.

25                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Aye.
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1                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Opposed?  [None]

2              The motion is carried.

3              Moving on to New Business.  We have File

4 160212, Darlene Green.  No public comment is accepted.

5              Scottie, will you please give us the details.

6                        MS. EAGAN:  This is File 160212.  The

7 Applicant is Darlene Green.

8              The Applicant requests to rezone one parcel

9 from Residential Development to Commercial Activity Highway

10 Service.

11              The property is located on West Springfield

12 Road, approximately 3/4 miles west of Peacock Road, in

13 Central Township.

14              The Facts:  The total area for the rezoning

15 is approximately 17 [sic] acres.

16              The zoning of this property is Residential

17 Development.  The Applicant would like to rezone to

18 Commercial Activity Highway Service.

19              Commercial Activity Highway Service zoning

20 accommodates commercial uses that draw business primarily

21 along the major highways within the county.

22              The properties around the proposed site,

23 southeast of Springfield Road, are primarily zoned

24 Residential Development.

25              The properties across Springfield Road are
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1 zoned Commercial Activity Highway Service.

2              This property is across the highway from the

3 city limits of St. Clair.

4              This property is surrounded primarily by

5 low-density residential land.

6              The property directly south of this parcel has

7 self-storage units.

8              There is a property north of this parcel that

9 has a commercial business, which appears to be an office and

10 some sort of vehicle repair business.

11              This property has access to Springfield Road,

12 which is a County-maintained road.

13              And at this time, the Applicant -- at the time

14 I wrote this staff report, the Applicant was not the current

15 owner, but they have a contract to purchase the property,

16 and I believe they are now the current owners of the

17 property.

18              Staff Comments:  The future land use map shows

19 this property as medium-density residential.

20              Rezonings are allowed in our regulations due to

21 the ever-changing conditions that exist in the county and

22 elsewhere.  According to Article 14, Section 321, any such

23 change must promote the health, safety, morals, comfort, and

24 general welfare of Franklin County by conserving and

25 protecting property and building values, by securing the
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1 most economical use of land and facilitating the adequate

2 provision of public improvements in accordance with the

3 Master Plan adopted by Franklin County.

4                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Thank you.

5              One thing before we have the applicant come up.

6 It's procedural.

7              The way the Franklin County Planning and Zoning

8 Commission by-laws are written, for a CUP and subdivision

9 application, this can be sent to Old Business with the

10 unanimous vote.  It does not include rezoning.  So rezoning

11 automatically goes to the Review Committee.

12              Everyone all right with that?  Again, it's

13 something we can always change, but the way the rules are

14 not, it will go to the Review Committee.

15              Is the Applicant here?  Please step forward.

16 If you'd state your name and address and sign in, please.

17                        MS. DARLENE GREEN:  Darlene Green,

18 and I am at 540 Triple Crown Manor in Fenton.

19                        [Thereupon, the witness was sworn.]

20                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay.  If you would,

21 please give us some detail on why you're requesting the

22 rezoning.

23                        MS. GREEN:  I wanted to rezone the

24 front 17 acres to do an event center and build like a 4,000

25 square foot timber frame barn.  Did you hear any of that?
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1                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  No, I can't

2 hear.

3                        MS. GREEN:  No.  So I am going to --

4 I'd like to build a 4,000 square foot timber frame barn to

5 host events and weddings.

6                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  The Commissioners

7 have any questions?

8                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  I do have a

9 question, Scottie.  On this application, it said 42 acres.

10 In staff comments it said 43.  Did she have to apply for

11 another application for the 17 acres because you've changed

12 that?

13                        MS. GREEN:  No, I don't --

14                        MS. EAGAN:  No, we amended the

15 application because it's less than what she originally asked

16 for.  So the notification stell went to everybody within 600

17 feet because she shrank it rather than enlarged it.

18                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Okay. So this

19 is good except for the 42 it should be 17?

20                        MS. EAGAN:  Right.

21                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Okay.

22 Thanks.

23                        COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Is your venue

24 going to be primarily indoor, or are you going to have some

25 outdoor activities in part of this event center?
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1                        MS. GREEN:  It would be all indoor,

2 unless like there was a request to have an outdoor ceremony,

3 but there would be no outdoor reception.

4                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Bill, it looks like

5 you want to make a -- ask a question.

6                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  You know, I

7 always want to ask questions, and I have two.  And I was

8 asking the Highway Department director here.

9              Looking at the map and it was something new

10 that was just handed out tonight, but it appears that in

11 front of your property is 30-foot wide road and the rest of

12 the roads are 40-foot wide.

13              You know, I would have a concern that you want

14 to go to commercial activity where the road is narrower in

15 front of your property than the rest of the property along

16 there.

17              Now, I -- it's probably nothing that we can --

18 and I have to ask if it's something that we could say could

19 we ask for a 40-foot easement through there to be the same

20 easement as everything else?

21                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  You can

22 always ask.

23                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Okay.  I mean,

24 if we're going to more dense use and this is the only piece

25 of property that doesn't have a 40-foot easement, it would
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1 look to me like it would make sense that it would have a

2 40-foot easement along there also.

3                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  You cannot

4 condition whatever you do on it.

5                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  I understand

6 that.

7                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Right.

8                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  And you're using

9 this as a wedding venue basically?

10                        MS. GREEN:  Yes.

11                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  For weekends only?

12                        MS. GREEN:  It would be weekends

13 only.

14                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  And 4,000-foot

15 structure, is it heated, insulated, plumbing, or just a pole

16 barn?

17                        MS. GREEN:  No, it would be all wood

18 out exterior and would be insulated with all HVAC.

19                        COMMISSIONER TOBBEN:  On that map

20 there, where is your building site going to be?

21                        MS. GREEN:  Do you see the little one

22 acre spot?  I guess -- yes, right there.  There is a house

23 there.  It would be I guess south.

24                        COMMISSIONER TOBBEN:  Okay.

25                        MS. GREEN:  No, it would be like
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1 towards the back.  Yeah, more in that vicinity, maybe just a

2 little more to the west, so kind of behind that house more.

3                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Will it be an open

4 structure, will it contain a kitchen and other rooms?

5                        MS. GREEN:  No kitchen other than

6 like maybe a prep area.  It would be some storage and maybe

7 a gathering area, but otherwise, it would be all open.

8                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  So indoor bathrooms?

9                        MS. GREEN: Yes.

10                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  What would you think

11 the capacity would be?

12                        MS. GREEN:  Originally I was going to

13 ask for 150 people.  I have now since learned that that puts

14 me into an A2 occupancy.  So then that would require

15 sprinklers.  So I might have to have -- I might be down to

16 99 or 100 I guess.

17                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  What hours of

18 operation would you be looking at during the weekend?

19                        MS. GREEN:  Sure.  It would probably

20 go from like 10:00 a.m. to I would imagine 12:00 a.m.

21                        MS. ZIELKE:  And, Bill, this is

22 information I told her she didn't have to include in that

23 since it was a rezoning.  She did already submit the

24 conditional use permit application, asked if she should be

25 putting documents in both, and I hold her no.
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1                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay, okay.

2                        MS. EAGAN:  Right.  We should just be

3 looking at the zoning district and what is included.

4                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  I apologize.

5                        MS. EAGAN:  Yeah.  And also her

6 justification for rezoning is also included in your packet,

7 so you can ask her questions about that as well.

8                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  I like the new

9 form that we've got here.  We've only had this for the

10 second meeting, and I think you've done a good job of

11 filling it out.  And I appreciate that.  So we're trying to

12 learn.  I'm trying -- I better not say we.  I am trying to

13 learn as we go along.  So as we ask questions, some of them

14 may be not pertinent.  So -- but would -- when we get down

15 to explain how the rezoning is going to get to the health

16 and welfare in your form to the master plan, your answers to

17 me by meeting the economic goals and providing jobs to local

18 contractors to build and maintain and bring valuable

19 resources into the area, are you expecting to put other

20 businesses there or just your own business or what economic

21 impact are you expecting to create is kind of the --

22                        MS. GREEN:  Sure.

23                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  -- interesting

24 question that I have.

25                        MS. GREEN:  There are quite a few
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1 right there actually in St. Clair.  There is a hair stylist.

2 There's theaters.  There is florists.  Photographers.  There

3 is lodging.  This location I have been probably looking for

4 quite some time, and this location ended up I felt being

5 perfect because it's so close to the highway.  There's no

6 effort to drive.  I felt that it was less impact on

7 neighbors because on one side is the storage units and on

8 the other side is that commercial area, and then by having

9 the property in half, that's 25 acres in between the next --

10 the farm behind me.  But it would be just more services.

11                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  So that

12 your -- there wouldn't be any other businesses on your

13 property?

14                        MS. GREEN:  No.

15                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  It's just

16 would enhance the rest of the community around?

17                        MS. GREEN:  Yes.

18                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  By them having

19 another customer base.

20                        MS. GREEN:  Correct.

21                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  You know, I

22 drove out there today.  I couldn't tell from the map what

23 this was.  So I made a drive out and I visited the site.  I

24 think probably with the rest of this stuff around, you know

25 my personal opinion is that this probably fits not
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1 necessarily the future land use plan but really fits the

2 thing I was a little bit worried about -- looking on the

3 thing, I was worried about what the railroad track crossing

4 was, if somebody was coming out there and did not know the

5 area and that was my real concern or my major concern.  But

6 I think this is appropriate zoning for the area to consider.

7              So that's my two cents worth.  I would still

8 have the opinion that, you know, it would sure be nice if

9 you would voluntarily convey the other 10-foot of road to

10 match everyone else.

11                        MS. GREEN:  And does the Highway

12 Department -- I mean, do they feel that that's needed, that

13 the -- because I think we talked a little bit about just

14 like driveway access, but we didn't talk about road

15 easements.  But there is a little bit of a curve right

16 there, and when you walk -- go into the location where the

17 house is, which is an easement, there is a little bit of a

18 site distance.  So it really does kind of make sense

19 actually to move the driveway to the property further west.

20 But I'm guessing that's where it's 30 feet because you're

21 saying the whole entire road in front of that property is

22 30 feet, correct, 30 feet wide?

23                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  [Nodding]

24                        MS. GREEN:  Okay.  And your

25 suggestion that maybe --
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1                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Well, the

2 properties that border you all the way around have a 40-foot

3 easement in front of their property.  So I just -- you know,

4 this -- it was just my personal opinion, but I think the

5 County likes to have a 40-foot easement all the way around.

6 And if you're going for a commercial use, it would be nice

7 to have that same.

8                        MS. GREEN:  Sure.  But I'm glad you

9 said that about the area because I was kind of thinking the

10 same thing, that it -- with those farms in the area, I think

11 this is small enough to be private, but yet it also still

12 kind of protects that ground to keep it more agricultural.

13 The neighbor, that 25 acres, that other half, he rents for

14 pasture.

15                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Ron, did you have

16 any opinion on the easement?

17                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  I was going

18 to ask a question that maybe a -- maybe become a moot point.

19 Are you planning on divide the property at any point in

20 time?

21                        MS. GREEN:  No.

22                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Oh, so there

23 would be an opportunity to get the necessary dedication at

24 the subdivision of the property.  It would be nice to have

25 the other 10 feet, you know, very honestly, and match it up.
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1 If ever the property is subdivided, it will be subject to

2 that requirement anyway.  So if you can do it now --

3                        MS. GREEN:  And you're just saying

4 ten.

5                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  -- before you

6 develop.

7                        MS. GREEN:  Got you.

8                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  And then if

9 you wanted to subdivide at a later date, that won't be

10 hanging over your head.

11                        MS. GREEN:  Uh-huh.

12                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Correct?

13                        MS. EAGAN: I mean, if she ever did

14 divide the property, we require 15 because of the 50-foot

15 minimum that we go for a county road.  But I mean, we can't

16 force you at this time to do anything.  So...

17                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Where do you

18 plan to put your entrance?

19                        MS. GREEN: I guess it would be east

20 of that pond that's right -- I'm thinking that a little more

21 east.  That would be kind of --

22                        MS. ZIELKE:  This is east.

23                        MS. GREEN:  I was just looking --

24 yeah, I was thinking 44 west.

25                        MS. ZIELKE:  It goes north and south
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1 right through there.

2                        MS. GREEN:  Okay.  So it would just

3 be right along the side of that pond basically, then go to

4 the back.

5              Right, kind of there is the storage, and then

6 the pond, and then the -- right there.

7                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Mr.

8 Chairman.  Bill, I certainly would agree with you.   I think

9 this is certainly -- it appears to be apropos to the area

10 out there.  I was feeling somewhat hesitant seeing how much

11 of the -- the first request for the rezoning was.  But being

12 here this evening, I see where it has been reduced down to a

13 more -- certainly to where it present itself much better for

14 commercial activity highway sheriff, okay, as opposed to

15 extending it closer and closer to residential areas in that

16 -- in that vicinity out there.

17              So certainly I would think that this one

18 rezoning request certainly would appear to fit in with the

19 appropriate request.  Yeah.

20                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other questions?

21  [None]

22              Thank you.

23                        MS. GREEN:  Thank you.

24                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other discussion

25 among the Commissioners?  If not, as I stated before that
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1 this file does have to go to the Review Committee.

2              And I would suggest if someone wanted to make

3 that motion, they'd also include leaving the file open for a

4 couple of weeks in case those Commissioners who haven't had

5 a chance to go by there could get by there.  It

6 automatically goes to the Review Committee.

7                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Mr.

8 Chairman, if it automatically goes to the Review Committee,

9 are you sure you're looking for a motion to that extent, to

10 send it to them?

11                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  No, we would not

12 need one then.

13                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  You

14 believe we do need one still?

15                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  No.  No, we would

16 not need a motion then.

17                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  If it

18 automatically does, I think it takes care of itself.

19                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  The only reason I

20 suggested it -- and, Mark, correct me if I was wrong -- if

21 I'm wrong.  IF we wanted to keep the file open --

22                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  You could

23 move just to keep the file open, but it's still going to go

24 the Review Committee.

25                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Right, right.  And
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1 that's why I suggested, because I have not been able to get

2 by to seat of the property.  So the appropriate motion would

3 be to keep the file open for a period of time.

4                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:

5 Mr. Chairman, I'll make a motion then that the File 160212,

6 the Applicant Darlene Green, that this file remain open for

7 a period of three weeks from the date -- from today's date.

8                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Second.

9                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  We have a motion and

10 a second to keep this file open for three weeks.  All in

11 favor signify by saying aye.

12                        COMMISSIONER VOSS:  Aye.

13                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Aye.

14                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Aye.

15                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Aye.

16                        COMMISSIONER BOLAND:  Aye.

17                        COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Aye.

18                        COMMISSIONER TOBBEN:  Aye.

19                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Aye.

20                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Aye.

21                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Opposed?  [None]

22              Motion is carried.

23              All right.  Moving on to File 160220, Meramec

24 Aggregates, Incorporated.

25              Scottie, will you please give us the details.
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1                        MS. EAGAN:  This is File 160220,

2 Meramec Aggregates, Inc.

3              The Applicant wishes to operate a commercial

4 mining, production and sales in the Non-Urban and

5 Agricultural zoning district.

6              The property is located at 102/109 River Cabin

7 Road, on the south side of the intersection of Mill Hill

8 Road and Cove Creek Road, in Calvey Township.

9              The Facts:  The total acreage of the property

10 is approximately 54 acres in size.

11              The property is in the Non-Urban and

12 Agricultural zoning district.  The extraction, quarrying or

13 mining of sand, gravel topsoil or other material requires a

14 Conditional Use Permit in this zoning district.

15              This operation includes the mining, production

16 and sales of sand and gravel.

17              The area surrounding the property is primarily

18 low-density residential or undeveloped land.

19              Just across the river, Meramec Aggregates

20 applied for and received a Conditional Use Permit for mining

21 Meramec sand and gravel in March 2016.

22              All but the northeast corner of the property is

23 located within the floodplain.

24              A small portion of this property is located

25 within the floodway; however, it appears from the site plan
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1 the operation is not located within the floodway.

2              The Applicant is not the current owner of the

3 property, but we do have a contract between the owner and

4 Meramec Aggregates to purchase the property.

5              Staff Comments:  Because this property is in

6 the floodplain, the Applicant shall apply for a receive a

7 floodplain development permit and an elevation certificate

8 from the Franklin County Planning and Zoning Department

9 prior to issuance of a Conditional Use Permit.

10              If any mining to be done is located within the

11 floodway, the Applicant shall obtain a no-rise certificate

12 from a certified engineer for a regulatory floodway.

13              Any buildings used or built in connection with

14 this CUP will need to be approved by the Franklin County

15 Building Department for a commercial building.

16              The Applicant must comply with the Department

17 of Natural Resources Water Pollution Department and the Army

18 Corps of Engineers requirements and provide Planning and

19 Zoning with a 404 and a 401 permit, if required, prior to

20 issuing the Conditional Use Permit.

21              The Applicant shall have hours of operation.

22              The Applicant shall operate according to all

23 state and federal regulations.

24              All conditions shall be completed within one

25 year of approval unless otherwise stated.  Failure to meet
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1 all conditions may result in the application expiring.

2              All new and/or existing entrances onto Mill

3 Hill Road will need to be examined by the Franklin County

4 Highway Department for a commercial entrance.  Planning and

5 Zoning shall receive a copy of the permit prior to the

6 Applicant commencing any activities on the property.

7              And remember this is the application that our

8 County Counselor said did not require a Conditional Use

9 Permit, but the Applicant is requesting one on their own

10 accord.

11                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Thank you.

12              Is the applicant present?  Please state your

13 name and sign in, please.

14                        MR. LUEKEN: Yes, sir.  My name is

15 Cameron Lueken, of Wunderlich Surveying and Engineering.

16 Address 512 East Main.  Bill, I need time to set up.  Want

17 to swear me now or set up and swear in?

18                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Go ahead and set up.

19 No, go ahead and be sworn in.

20                        [Thereupon, the witness was sworn.]

21              Okay.  And when you're ready, if you would,

22 just tell us what your plan proposing.

23                        MR. LUEKEN:  That's going to be three

24 minutes for me to set up my PowerPoint.  Okay, Bill.  So...

25                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  All right.  We will
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1 talk amongst ourselves.

2                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  May I ask a

3 question of Mr. Vincent.  Is that letter correct?

4                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT: I can't see

5 that far.

6                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  The letter

7 you wrote.  Did you get no response from them?

8                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  I can't --

9 I can't --

10                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  That's okay.

11                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  The letter

12 that Russell is referring to is one that I sent to

13 Mr. Kuenzel on October 17th, and it said please acknowledge

14 receipt of your letter of October 13.  In order to assure

15 there are no misunderstanding and preserve the record for

16 the future, it is my understanding your client is

17 voluntarily submitting itself -- submitting itself to

18 Franklin County's jurisdiction, and thus, to the Planning

19 and Zoning Regulations in this process.  It is my further

20 understanding that by submitting to Franklin County's

21 jurisdiction, that you're waiving -- that your client is

22 waiving any and all claim the rights that -- which it may

23 have regarding the statutory prohibition to limit strip

24 mining and similar activities.

25              The response that I received from that letter
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1 was affirmative that they wrote and they recognize that by

2 appearing tonight.  I was told that they would be waiving

3 that.  I want to make something very clear if I can.

4              I gave might opinion.  I stand behind my

5 opinion.  I've had clients in the past that have ignored my

6 opinion, have felt that I was incorrect.  That's fine.  If

7 you guys choose to proceed tonight, that's your right.  You

8 just have any other plan to disregard or have -- take

9 exception with an opinion that somebody else issued, that is

10 your right to do.

11              Mr. Kuenzel and his client, to include

12 Mr. Cameron, here -- Lueken?

13                        MR. LUEKEN:  Yes.

14                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  Lueken,

15 that they want to proceed, that's their right.  I don't

16 think it's necessary.  I'll stand by that, but you guys, if

17 you want to hear it and if they want to submit themselves to

18 it, that's fine with me.

19                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Thank you.

20                        [Thereupon, a break was taken until

21                    7:37 p.m.; after which, the proceedings

22                   continued as follows:]

23                        MR. LUEKEN:  Okay, Mr. Chairman, I

24 think I'm ready when you are.  Shall I begin.

25                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Yes.
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1                        MR. LUEKEN:  Good evening.  My name's

2 Cameron Lueken with Wunderlich Surveying and Engineering,

3 and I'm representing Meramec Aggregates here tonight, which

4 is Lyn Havin.

5              So some of you have seen this before.  Some of

6 you haven't.  So bear with me as I go through some of the

7 same information you guys have seen before, but it's

8 important to the -- entered into the record.

9              So we're going to identify the need.  We're

10 going to talk about who's going to do.  We're going to talk

11 about how.  We're going to talk about where, when, nearest

12 residences as it relates to the nearest homes and concerning

13 the public.

14              So we're going to talk about the need.  The

15 need relates to -- it's been a common practice in Missouri

16 to utilize this Meramec aggregate and sand over the course

17 of the years.  It's a high quality aggregate that's utilized

18 in concrete, but we'll get into what its unique properties

19 and characteristics are.

20              This is the map identifying kind of where the

21 mine's been in the past.  A lot of those mines that are

22 represented on that map are not active anymore.  So in about

23 2014, looks like September 2014, a couple of registered jobs

24 we did a report identifying the unique characteristics of

25 the Meramec sand and gravel as it relates to the St. Louis
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1 region and there is the Meramec River.

2              What they talked about was the lack of lignite

3 in that -- in those deposits and how the characteristics of

4 how the gravel is some round and some angular, that it gives

5 a unique bonding characteristics and allows for great

6 workability for the concrete.

7              I have also identified the location of it,

8 meaning that it's just in the Meramec River basin and it

9 originates in the upper area near Salem, and then goes to

10 ultimately converges with the Bourbeuse and the Big River.

11 The Big River and the -- or I'm sorry.  The Bourbeuse at

12 least has areas on it that aren't ideal for aggregate, and

13 that's -- you can kind of parallel that to, for those of us

14 who live around here, we'll see the Meramec will clear

15 before the Bourbeuse  River, and that has to do with kind of

16 what's in this basin, you might say.

17              More technically speaking, the coal lignite

18 MoDOT, when you use flatwork, bridge decks, roadwork and all

19 that, they have a spec for the maximum amount of the coal

20 and lignite contained in those concrete ag mixtures that

21 happen to be point 25 percent by weight.  There's also

22 another AST, and that's American Siding Testing Materials.

23 They -- they mandate 0.5 percent.  Yeah, let me show 0.5

24 with flatwork concrete.

25              So what's the uniqueness about the hardness
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1 characteristic?  On the right-hand side, you've got a chart

2 that goes 1 to 10, top being the softest and bottom being

3 the hardest.  Where does this land in relation to limestone

4 versus Meramec sand and gravel?  So limestone lands between

5 three and four.  So that's dolomite, limestone.  Whereas,

6 the Meramec sand and gravel lands about the quartz is about

7 a seven.  So it's about twice as hard as limestone.

8 So limestone is softer.  To obtain the Meramec sand and

9 gravel, there is really two options.  One is in the river

10 and the other is along side the river.

11              The chart that you saw earlier contained

12 excavation areas in the past that were actually inside the

13 river.  And the recent years with environmental concerns

14 from certain species, whether it be from muscles or whether

15 it be from whatever it might be, just the environmental

16 considerations.  DNR, as you'll see later, mandates is

17 another regulatory authority for this type of permit.

18 Basically DNR is saying they wanted to -- they are pushing,

19 they are pushing for these type of operations to get out of

20 the river and to the outside, you might say, the high bank

21 of the river.

22              Lyn experienced that herself.  She was

23 operating a dredge within the river, and basically they

24 limited the permit to the point where it was not feasible,

25 and then basically they rescinded the permit, for lack of
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1 better words, didn't grant another permit for that.

2              So that only leaves the option to get it from

3 along side the river.

4              Crushed stone limits -- let's talk about the

5 crush stone limitations.  I'm talking about the limestone

6 here.  What happens is there's two things that occur that

7 alkali silica reaction.  The other one is an alkali

8 carbonate reaction.  So the alkali silica reaction would be

9 you're walking along and you'll see these pop-outs.  If you

10 looked at it, you'll see a white -- usually a white piece of

11 rock.  That's dolomite.  What basically happens is that that

12 expands and causes that to pop out.

13              And so with dolomite or limestone, you'll

14 frequently see that occur.  That's the reason why there's a

15 limit on the maximum, like MoDOT regulations and whatnot.

16 So that softer material absorbs water. It expands and

17 freezes in the wintertime.  So this porous -- so there's

18 zero superocity [ph.] that causes the pop-outs.  It's

19 soluble.

20              So I frankly just recently -- this is a

21 PowerPoint slide which we found that just occurred in

22 O'Fallon.  This a slab to the right.  This is late 2013.

23 This is a slab on the left.  This is June 30, 2016. So

24 what's happened this is an alkali carbonate reaction.  What

25 happened here.  This is a slab in 2013.  This is a slab
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1 here.  So what's happened is that alkali carbonate reaction

2 occurred.  It's called this patch cracking, and had major

3 pavement failure in the same area.

4              So and if you look down this road, you'll see

5 another patch here, another patch.  I guess what O'Fallon

6 did after and based upon their research, they realized what

7 was happening, and they passed an ordinance on August 11,

8 2016.  Basically it says, hey, if you're going to use this

9 stuff, you need to test it.  So what happens if you're going

10 to dolomite, limestone, in our streets, you need to have

11 third-party testing verifying that it doesn't contain too

12 much of this bad stuff, you might say.

13              Or in lieu of that, in lieu of it that testing,

14 simply states Meramec gravel can be utilized for the coarse

15 aggregate and for the concrete pavement.  So basically they

16 say okay you can use dolomite if you wish, but you need to

17 test it, or you can, in lieu of testing, you can use Meramec

18 gravel and not test it.

19              So that's speaks to the high quality aggregate

20 that we're trying to utilize for the streets and bridges

21 here Franklin County.

22              So what are the applications we're talking as

23 far as concrete aggregate?  It's the higher quality that

24 vendors trust, the sand.  It also provides the sand needed

25 in limestone concrete.  Exposed aggregate.  You've seen
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1 exposed aggregate.  That's what you're looking at.  This is

2 Meramec, for lack of better words, for pea gravel, you might

3 say.  Sometimes there is washed stone, and that's utilized

4 for chip-and-seal road.  It's used in drain fields.  It's

5 used in wastewater treatment facilities such as recycling

6 sand filters.

7              What happens is, for like working on some

8 school or subdivision, when you do a discharge of a

9 wastewater treatment facility, you have to have a low BOD,

10 low TSS.  Anyway this hardness of this material provides

11 enough -- the right type of median to achieve the -- some of

12 the best treatment facilities or some of the best treatment

13 to the fluid.

14              So certainly sand filters is another use of

15 this type of aggregate.  It's also in, I think, it says --

16 yeah, landfills.  So the leachate collection system that

17 lays below these landfills, it's used there also because

18 it's so hard.  It doesn't break down.  So the chemicals that

19 show up in these landfills, it doesn't break down this rock;

20 whereas, it would break down other rock like dolomite.

21              So something I thought was interesting when we

22 did this is what -- and when you look at a yard of concrete,

23 what it's comprised of.  81 percent of it is comprised of

24 coarse aggregate and sand.  So the majority of a yard of

25 concrete utilizes this high quality aggregate.
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1              So who's going to do this?  The company

2 background for Lyn is it's the oldest concrete company in

3 Franklin County.  It's been in business for about 76 years.

4 They currently have more than 48 full-time employees in

5 plants in Union and St. Clair.

6              The purpose is to continue to mine Meramec sand

7 and gravel in NUA zoning district, and it's to obtain

8 aggregate for commercial operations.

9              So the history is that, as stated earlier, Lyn

10 is currently operating a sand and gravel plant, 0460, off

11 Highway 30.  That plant's been there for many, many years,

12 and that's been doing the same thing basically.  What we're

13 asking for tonight is a new sand and gravel plant at a

14 different location.  Let me explain that.

15              So as Scottie stated, the plant that we

16 recently -- I'm sorry, the mining we recently obtained a

17 permit for on Jeffriesburg Road, if you -- some of you

18 remember my -- our presentation, that's about a five-year

19 plan -- a five-year plan.  So that aggregate will be hauled

20 to the existing sand and gravel plant, processed there until

21 such time that mine is closed.

22              So what Lyn is preparing to do is open a new

23 sand and gravel plant at the proposed location tonight and

24 basically close the one on Jeffriesburg Road.  So as stated,

25 again, a new one will open.  It just takes -- as you can
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1 imagine, it takes a while to get one of these operational

2 with all permits.  So we're preparing to the operate -- get

3 the permits in placed to operate this new one with new

4 equipment and then shut down the old one.

5              So how is this going to be and where and when?

6 So as Scottie alluded to earlier, there is this litany of

7 permits we have to get, and I guess we're going to go count

8 through hee.  He's a flowchart kind of identifying where

9 we're at.  I'll just kind of go through it.  It'll be easier

10 to -- it'll be easier to visualize as go through them.

11              As Scottie mentioned, the 404 from the Corps

12 and the 401 is required.  This has already been achieved per

13 a site visit from the Army Corps of Engineers.

14              Let me go back just one second here.  So

15 basically Scottie did allude to a floodplain development

16 permit.  We'll be getting that based upon your approval.

17 The CUP, we're hoping on getting that based upon your

18 approval, and then this other stuff.  We've got to get these

19 other permits, and I'll kind of get into that later.

20              As far as testimony, we've done that.  As far

21 as we've completed that also.

22              So where's this at?  So this is St. Clair.

23 This is Highway 30.  That's the proposed area, the property.

24 That's Mill Hill Road shown in gray.  The orange route is

25 Highway TT, that's State Route TT.  We're going to zoom in a
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1 little bit tighter here.  Yeah.  So just to give you an idea

2 where the other plant was at, the other pit rather, is right

3 here.  This is the one we call the Jeffriesburg.  It's right

4 across the river, and that aggregate is being hauled out and

5 processed about right here.  So this -- this plant, like I

6 said, will be operating here, and it's going to be hauled

7 out down Mill Hill Road, up TT and out to commercial.

8              So what's the details of it.  We propose

9 operating Monday through Friday, 7:30 to 3:30, depending

10 upon the need and depending on plant operation.  Lyn is

11 asking for -- we may -- she may need to operate 12 times a

12 year on a Saturday.  So that's going to be in the -- most

13 likely the summer months when the demand for that gets

14 higher.  There's going to be about eight to ten employees.

15              Describing this -- this site is a little bit

16 different than the previous site.  There's about seven feet

17 of overburden, topsoil, and there's about twenty feet of

18 aggregate below that.  So it's going to be, the overburden

19 removed first to get to the aggregate.  Once completed,

20 there's going to be about a 25-acre lake, and there's going

21 to be about a hundred foot buffer from existing bank of the

22 Meramec to the lake.

23              There will be an office and plant.  It's going

24 to be fenced and gated so it will be secure.  Obviously this

25 is also subject to the -- I call it M-SHA, the Mine Safety
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1 and Health Administration.  So there's tests that she has to

2 do regular to make sure everything is in compliance with

3 those guys.

4              So one of the details estimate 30 years to

5 complete.  There's probably, we estimate, between about

6 900,000 to a million yards of aggregate below the

7 overburden.  DNR on something like beside the river a

8 50-year permit.  The permit is just for the 35 acres, not

9 the entire property.  This includes all disturbed areas.  So

10 the area that's shown, the excavating area, is about 38 or

11 30 acres.  The roads, office and processing is about five

12 acres.

13              So what's this look like?  So let me go forward

14 a slide.  So the area in pink, that's the limits of the

15 property, the area in the pink.

16              Scottie mentioned the floodplain.  That is this

17 area that's in blue.   She mentioned there was only a

18 certain portion of the area that's outside the floodplain.

19 That's this area over here.  It's higher.

20              She mentioned the floodway.  The floodway line

21 is right along basically the high bank of the Meramec, right

22 along the south property line.  So the floodway will be --

23 we will not be entering the floodway in this permit to do

24 any excavation.

25              Let's go back.  So as an overview of this, how
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1 is this going to kind of work is the operations plant will

2 be here.  So the -- I got a next -- let  me see if the next

3 slide.  We'll come back to this.

4              So this is the property as it exists basically.

5 So what's going to happen is we're going to build this area

6 here for the scales and the office, the processing plan, the

7 pump basin.

8              How that works is that we're going to start on

9 the north side of the property, excavate the overburden in

10 this area right here.  Move the overburden to this area

11 right here. So we're going to move the overburden down

12 there.

13              Then we're going to start to -- let me back up

14 one time.

15              Part of when you visit the site, you'll see

16 that basically this area here is lower, and there is also a

17 creek here.  So there's two reasons for this berm.  One is

18 to help shield the, I guess, passerby or these houses north.

19 This is actually the closest house right here to the

20 operation.  We'll get to that in a minute.  So one is to

21 shield that house because it's basically, this and this.

22 There's not much grade difference, elevation difference,

23 maybe 20, 30 feet maybe is all.  So that berm will help

24 shield these operations here.

25              So basically what happens is the dredged is
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1 going to be placed here in the water.  The dredge will pump

2 the aggregate to the pump head, the water literally will be

3 returned and pumped back to the dredge.  So there will be a

4 recirculation of this back and forth, you might say, of the

5 water.  So that's how the plant will operate.  The dredge

6 supplies the pump head, the excavator will dig the area of

7 the pump basin out and below the material separator here,

8 and then the water will be returned.

9              So there's not going to be any water discharged

10 to the river from this activity.  It's all going to be

11 contained so totally within this property here.

12              So that's the one-year example.  We anticipate

13 about an acre a year to be mined.  So kind of one year --

14 one-year slide, two-year slide.  Eventually it's going to

15 move from the south -- north to the south.  Eventually the

16 area in pink will be the full excavation limits of that.

17              Then the area in blue will be the limits of the

18 lake.

19              As mentioned before, the haul route, the trucks

20 are going to enter this way here. They'll come around, get

21 the aggregate loaded -- well, they'll come in here, get the

22 aggregate loaded, run across the scale, and then come back

23 out and exit.  So as far as trucks coming in and coming out,

24 it will be kind of a loop like that around that area.

25              So let's back to that.  I know I kind of said a
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1 lot about the operations plan there.  Does anybody have any

2 question about the operations plan, about how it's going to

3 happen or...

4                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  How high that

5 berm you're talking about?

6                        MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah, so that -- that

7 berm will probably be in the range of, I'm guessing, about

8 10 feet, 15 feet above grade, something like that.  A

9 significant berm.

10                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  And then is

11 an elevation to the house across the way, I mean, is that up

12 the hill, down the hill?

13                        MR. LUEKEN:  That's downhill.  That

14 is down --  as you can kind of see there, this house that's

15 shown there is just on the verge of the floodplain.  So to

16 give you an idea what that means, is that the scale and this

17 office right here --

18                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Uh-huh.

19                        MR. LUEKEN:  -- obviously that's

20 going to built according to a commercial building permit.

21 So it's all going to be elevated above the base foundation.

22 So that scale house and office there is going to be elevated

23 about seven to nine feet above the ground that is there.

24 And you see it's real close to the edge right there?

25                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Uh-huh.
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1                        MR. LUEKEN:  So this is -- this house

2 is real close to the edge right here.  So it's about the

3 same elevation.

4                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Okay.

5                        MR. LUEKEN:  So I guess what I'm

6 saying there, Russell, is that that berm, that 10-feet berm,

7 and Lyn -- Lyn's here tonight.  So she can answer questions

8 about that, but she identified she'd plant some, you know, a

9 vegetative buffer on top on that.  You know, trees on top of

10 that also.  So that will help also.  And I've got a slide

11 later I can show you probably for that house to show you

12 what it looks like from the road.

13                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  How wide a

14 berm you talking? I mean --

15                        MR. LUEKEN:  So it'll be --

16                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  --  10 feet?

17                        MR. LUEKEN:  No, it'll be -- so to

18 answer that question, if it's 10 feet high, you know, the

19 base is going to be at least 70 feet.  So it'll be a

20 significant.  So you got to -- if you go up to 10 feet, you

21 got a 3:1 slope.  So 10 times 360 times 10 foot wide, plus

22 another 30.  So that's -- basically about 70 feet wide.

23                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  And that's

24 going to be out of the overburden, right?

25                        MR. LUEKEN:  Correct.
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1              Yes, sir?

2                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAM:  How many

3 trucks per day?

4                        MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah, so we'll get into

5 that, but basically about 70 trips per day.

6                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Seventy,

7 one-way trips or seventy round trips?

8                        MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah, so I was thinking

9 about.  Say that 70 loads will go - 70 trucks will go out

10 and come back.  So that's trips.  So 70 trips.  So 70 loads.

11                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  So 140 times

12 the trucks go back and forth across the road?

13                        MR. LUEKEN:  So if you're standing

14 there, Bill, you'll see a truck go by 140 times, yes.

15                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Okay.  So as

16 far as -- I'm sorry.  Does anybody have any questions about

17 the operation plan?

18                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Go over it

19 again.  You said it was brand new processing equipment?

20                        MR. LUEKEN:  Yes.  So Lyn can

21 identify the brand model that it is, but basically she's not

22 going to move the plant that currently is at Highway 30.

23 That plant -- I'm talking over here, but I think that plant,

24 Ron, produces only about 60 tons an hour or something like

25 that.  It's not very efficient.  This plant is going be
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1 producing probably a hundred tons an hour, but the way it

2 is, I think it's lower profile.  It's not as noisy.  It's a

3 more efficient plant.

4              Should I move on?

5                        COMMISSIONER BOLAND:  Yep.

6                        MR. LUEKEN:  All right.  So as far as

7 the buffer width, stream buffer width, the non-coal mineral

8 resources report in 2013 identified -- they compared stream

9 buffer widths, and in that most states require 100 feet or

10 less.  Franklin County Land Use Regulations, they require

11 100-feet buffer, according to that Article 11.2.2.8.3.

12              So how does it compare to other pits?  This is

13 the one in Valley Park.  This is 44 and 141.  This is

14 basically they've got about a hundred feet there on the

15 Meramec on the north bank.  Here in Pacific, they've got

16 about another hundred feet there along -- along that bank

17 there.  Here's another one in Pacific also, about a hundred

18 feet also.

19              So as we -- as we go -- as we go back to that

20 -- I didn't point this out.  I want to apologize.  Here on

21 the southern -- northern bank of the river, we close a

22 hundred feet.  So from the top of the bank to the top of the

23 excavation area, which will be well outside the treeline in

24 that area, is a hundred-feet buffer.  So basically like the

25 farmer is farming closer than a hundred feet to the top of
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1 the bank, we'd be moving at least a hundred feet away with

2 our excavation pit.

3              So the -- so if anyone visits the site, that

4 buffer would not go to the treeline.  It would be outside

5 the trees to the north.

6              Okay.  So the nearest residences that I

7 mentioned, basically the closest one is about 480 feet to

8 the north here.  And that's -- that's where I was mentioning

9 that berm as proposed.  That one is 885 feet and 850 feet.

10 The one that's up here is pretty far up the hill.  This one

11 here likewise is a pretty good stand of trees right here

12 between these two here.  The one that's mentioned 500 feet

13 here, what that is, is a cabin that's owned by, I think, an

14 individual out of Eureka.

15              If you go down there and look at it, there's

16 basically four cabins.  Three of the four cabins are in very

17 bad disrepair.  One cabin is pretty nice, and basically what

18 it is, is when Lyn buy's it, she's going to own the ground

19 underneath of the cabin.  And those people have a lease over

20 the top of her property you might say.

21              And those people, Mrs. Bruns is the one that

22 owns the property.  Those people have been contacted, but

23 they don't have any concerns other than they just want to

24 continue to use their cabin the way it is.  Which Lyn

25 wouldn't have a problem if it doesn't interfere with the
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1 operation. So basically that cabin is used on weekends and

2 holidays during the non-peak times.  So basically Lyn will

3 be operating here, but most -- it's not permanent residents.

4 So there won't be anybody there, maybe on an occasional

5 Saturday you might say.

6              So the concerns of public, the increased

7 traffic potential.  As I mentioned earlier, the -- the

8 loaded truck routes -- the loaded truck route will be out to

9 the north on Mill Hill Road for about 3/4 of a mile.  These

10 drivers, you know, they'll be familiar with the road.  The

11 plant will be closed during peak recreational times.  So

12 based on the hours of operation you saw, most of the time

13 people on the river are there on weekends.  They'll be

14 closed -- they would close during that time.

15              And the average would be 70 trips per day.  So

16 as -- again, that's 70 loads would leave.  The trucks come

17 back with 140 passes.  I consider a trip in and out is what

18 I consider a trip.  That's why I used 70.  So...

19              So what's this look like as far the entrance.

20 As we mentioned, we'd be obligated to get a permit from

21 Franklin County regarding the entrance here.  We think it's

22 a safe entrance there.  This is the entrance looking south.

23 So that's where we'd basically keep one entrance looking

24 south.  So there's plenty of sight distance to the south.

25 This is the sight distance to the north.  So that's
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1 basically we'd apply to widen that entrance.  But basically

2 that's where it's going to be at.  So that's looking north

3 and that -- so it's level.  It's level and it's straight.

4 So it's a good place to come off Mill Hill Road.

5              As far as the roadway failure is concerned,

6 Mill Hill Road is a county-maintained road, and as you can

7 see, it's in great shape.  White line, yellow line.

8              As far as State Highway T, I did talk to MoDOT.

9 They did have a meeting about the -- I basically sent them

10 the operations plan, and I talked with Mr. Jeff Long about

11 that. And basically their only concerns were that the trucks

12 would be legal.  They'd be legally loaded.  And that was

13 basically the only concern.  And obviously the guys have

14 their CDLs are going to make sure they've got legally loaded

15 trucks.

16              So the other concerns of the public, the

17 protected species might be -- could be -- could be whatever.

18 So we -- like I said, we contacted the Corps.  We contacted

19 DNR.  We also contacted U. S. Fish and Wildlife.  So we got

20 U. S. Fish and Wildlife approval.  Mrs. Jane Ledwin, we

21 talked to her this past week to make sure there were no

22 issues going into this.  And basically her -- she identified

23 none.

24              Like I said, the Army Corps of Engineers

25 investigated right on site to make sure there's no wetlands
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1 or any other impacts.  They actually were on site looking

2 for hydro-soil or looking for any weapons.  There's no

3 impact for that.  So we got a 404.  And as I mentioned,

4 we're going to maintain a hundred-feet buffer from the

5 river.  And that 25-acre lake after completion.

6              So basically there's, after completion, there's

7 more -- it's an agricultural field now, but there will be

8 more potential for, you know, I guess, flora and fauna after

9 we get done than there is there now.

10              So this is the letter from the Corps, the 401.

11 I'm sorry, the 404.  This is the letter from the 40 -- this

12 is the letter from the DNR, the 401.

13              As you -- as we mentioned, to look at it to

14 compared to the national wetlands levels inventory, compared

15 the excavation months, this is what everyone's got access

16 to.  So there's no issues with wetlands in this area.

17              So concerns of the public obviously, noise is

18 one of them, and so let's talk about that.  Basically it's

19 the plant, like we've mentioned, will be operating from 7:30

20 to 3:30 and an occasional Saturday up to 12 times a year.

21 Maintain a hundred-feet buffer from the river.

22              When you look at the sound chart on this, based

23 on, I mentioned, the excavator there at the plant. So

24 basically a hundred feet, you know, might say near the road,

25 it's about speech level, maybe a little bit above speech
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1 level.

2              When you look at a boat, when you look at a jet

3 boat at 50 feet, it's 500 decibels.  So a lot of these

4 pieces of equipment that Lyn's going to have on site is the

5 dredge.  So when you look at the dredge sound paths, how

6 it's going to travel out, when you look at how that's going

7 to go out, the dredge path, you know, on the -- to answer

8 your question about that, nearest house to the north, you

9 know, I mentioned we're going to be operating that dredge up

10 there in the north.  When you look at where we're going to

11 start, that -- that berm that's not shown there, but that

12 berm will be basically built, you know, up here like that.

13              So this is a normal -- this is what normally

14 would be, you might say.  In that case, it'll be up -- even

15 up higher you might say.  So as the dredge gets closest, the

16 direct path, you know, it's going to be de-fracted you might

17 -- that's the technical term for the noise bounce.  It's

18 going to be de-fracted forward.  Reflected a different

19 direction as it hits this berm or as it hits the bank and

20 comes up.

21              So the dredge is going to be operating below

22 existing grade that anybody sees out there right now.

23              So as far as the particulates in the air, this

24 plant will be regulated by DNR on both the air emissions and

25 the stormwater runoff.
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1              So they limit -- they limit the particulate

2 size at the property line and the amount.  It's tested

3 monthly.  Basically as an emission with all the water that's

4 coming into the plant, the material is mostly going to be

5 moist as it's loaded into the -- in process.  So it's going

6 to minimize the particulate matter.

7              Obviously all the trucks will be tarped as they

8 leave, and there's large buffers from the property lines,

9 and because of the -- because of the aggregate itself,

10 because it is so hard, it is going to have little dust

11 compared limestone or your dolomite quarry, because it's not

12 -- it doesn't dust off and break down like the dolomite

13 does.

14              And that is as shown, the site is surrounded by

15 trees and hills.  And basically if you look at the

16 operations plan, the winds are primarily out of the west,

17 which to the east of this plant is all like Lyn's.  So it

18 gives -- if there is any particulate matter or fugitive dust

19 in the air, it has a chance to lay down before it ever

20 leaves the property.

21              Okay.  So as far as the stormwater runoff, the

22 reality is that the DNR is going to regulate stormwater

23 runoff, and it's going to be sampled monthly, submitted

24 quarterly, and this stuff that she already does.  So I guess

25 -- I guess don't be concerned that the company doesn't
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1 understand the regulations because they have a current plan

2 it operates under these same set of guidelines.  So it's

3 tested monthly and submitted quarterly, and in that the for

4 pH is suspended solids and oil and grease.  So the DNR wants

5 to make sure there's nothing coming off this site that's

6 harmful to the environment or neighbors.

7              As Scottie mentioned, the floodplain

8 development is required for this.  So we look at the

9 concerns of the public as it relates to the recreational,

10 say boaters, fishermen, floaters, or whatnot.  It's going to

11 -- excavation activities will not occur during peak times.

12 So it's not going to be occurring during the weekends,

13 holidays and evenings.

14              The elevation that was shown and treeline is

15 going to help shield it from the river.  Also the summertime

16 foliage will help also.

17              So what's that look like?  We look at this

18 river here and compare it to the proposed excavation pit in

19 cross-section.  What that looks like is this.

20              The river's here.  If you can imagine if you're

21 a boater up on the south bank here looking towards the

22 plant, this plant's about 30 to 40 feet high.  It's shown at

23 40 feet is what it's shown at.  I don't think it's actually

24 that high.  But as these trees are here, the sightline from

25 a boater on the river is about 30 feet over the top of the
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1 plant.  So he will not -- a boater will not be able to see

2 this plant from the river.   So it's -- so he's drive by it,

3 and he won't know that it's there.

4              There was some concern about the decrease in

5 property values.  The closest residence is 848 feet away on

6 the other side of Mill Hill Road.  Actually that property is

7 actually owned by Roger Gullet.  It's actually a rental

8 property.  I don't know if that person's here tonight or

9 not, but I don't know if Roger is here tonight or not, but

10 when you go down to look at it, with the berm and whatnot, I

11 just don't think it's going to be a -- it's going to be

12 shielded enough from the road that you're not going to

13 really see the operation, I say, from that residence.

14              So I guess as far as that relates to this is

15 the existing plan, I moved -- I moved to a different site

16 here.  This is her existing plant on Highway 30.  I guess in

17 -- in comparison, there's a house there.  It's about 710

18 feet away.  The entrance to the golf course is about 800

19 feet away from the plant.  So basically that's similar.

20 There's other uses there within proximity to the -- her

21 existing plant that's been perpetuated throughout the years.

22 So that's -- I don't think there's going to be -- I don't

23 believe there's going to be any issue with the way they're

24 setting this up.

25              So look at impact to local businesses, and as
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1 you know, there's a wedding venue on the other side of the

2 bluff here.  So their pavilion is basically right here on

3 the other side of the bluff.  So when you look at that, when

4 you look at how that plant is going to be in relationship to

5 that wedding venue, it's about 1100 feet away from the -- so

6 the dredge will be about 1100 feet away at some point in

7 time.  It's on the other side of Mill Hill road.  It's

8 screened by the hills and trees.  They have different hours

9 of operation typically speaking.  So it's means that their

10 wedding venues, you know, typically will start 3:00 to 4:00,

11 which will be when we're shutting down.  And it will be

12 Saturday, which we typically Lyn's not operating.

13              So and if there is -- if there is an -- if

14 there is an event on Saturday, the operation on Saturday, if

15 there is an occurrence, you know, Meramec Aggregates will

16 stop at 12:00.  Most of the time, those events are going to

17 start after 12:00 on Saturday, I would believe.

18              So when you look at this closer, what's this --

19 what's this look like to -- as far as sound at that

20 particular area if there wasn't a hill, if there wasn't

21 trees, you just do straight-line measurement, at that

22 distance, it'd be about 52 decibels if the dredge was

23 operating.  That's what it would sound like.  So if you

24 remember the chart, that's -- that's not very loud.

25              If you look at an outboard at full throttle at
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1 this location comparatively speaking, it's 100 decibels.  So

2 the boaters are a lot more disruptive to the, I guess, the

3 quietness of that site than the dredge would be.

4              When you look at the profile of that, if you

5 guys -- if you guys have a chance to visit the site, there's

6 a -- there's a very large hill right here in between.  You

7 go around this bluff right here, and so basically when you

8 look at that in cross-section, if you look at the pavilion

9 right here, which is there, and you look at a cross-section

10 of it, you can look at the office and look at the processing

11 plant, the sightline is going to be such that when you look

12 at the measure of the hill, it's about 95 feet above the top

13 of the plant.  Even the sightline, there's obviously no way

14 to see from the pavilion to the plant because that --

15 there's a large hill in the way.

16              So as far as a sight shed or a view shed to the

17 plant, it's  not even possible to see that plant from the

18 wedding pavilion.

19              So this is kind of the same thing.  On Google,

20 this is kind of a cross-section of how that goes up and down

21 and across the flat and then back up the hill on either side

22 over here.  So it goes -- it was back up and over here.  So

23 basically down below in the floodplain.

24              So I've kind of gone through that a little bit.

25 Do you have any questions about the relation of this to the
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1 -- anything I've shown you here?  Does anybody have any

2 questions about that?  [None]

3              Okay.  So as I mentioned, the -- the impact of

4 local businesses, the wedding venue is the closest operating

5 business that we know of, and as I mentioned, the guests

6 generally arrive around 3:00 with the ceremony at 4:00.  So

7 on a Saturday -- and generally those -- most of those events

8 I would think would occur on Saturday.  There could be some

9 Friday events, but there again, we're shutting down at 3:30.

10 So I don't -- I don't see that being a big issue

11 comparatively speaking to where on the previous slide I just

12 showed you.

13              Other operations Lyn's been involved in here to

14 the south -- or the south of us.  This is an operation she

15 -- where she built a lake back.  Mined the aggregate.  So a

16 successful operation.  Again, DNR has to give approval the

17 way the -- there's a mine plan that has to go in.  We have

18 to through another public hearing with DNR, identify to them

19 what we're going to do as far as putting the overburden

20 back, stabilizing everything, and creating this lake.

21              So here's an example where she was involved in

22 making sure that everything was fine with this one, on the

23 little mine.  There's a picture of that.

24              So basically in conclusion, there's a need.

25 There's a need for a quality aggregate source.  The company
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1 that's going to be doing it is the oldest concrete company

2 in Franklin County.  It's been in business for 76 years.

3              How?  Basically through the new processing

4 facility that we talked about and identified.  It's all

5 going to be properly permitted.  That means DNR, U. S. Fish,

6 Army Corps of Engineers.

7              And so the conclusion is, is that there's going

8 to be a 25-acre lake when it's completed.  It will be a nice

9 buffer.  Maintain a hundred foot what we talked about.  The

10 trees.  Basically this operation there's going to be maybe

11 one or two bigger trees taken down in the vicinity of the

12 operations, but basically all the trees that are on that

13 site are going to remain.

14              All the hours of operation will be limited to

15 the discharge and surrounding residences and businesses.

16 It's not going to affect any federal listed species.

17              And I'm going to stop with that for any

18 questions you guys might have.  I know there's members of

19 the audience who are going to have questions, and I'll be

20 prepared to answer those.  But at this point, do you have

21 any questions of me?

22                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any questions from

23 the Commissioners?  Ron?

24                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Where do you

25 stand with Fish and Wildlife?  Did you say you had the



 PUBLIC HEARINGS  11/15/2016

www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334
MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES

Page 60

1 permit or you're working on the permit?

2                        MR. LUEKEN:  That's correct, Ron.

3 Yes.  So what we did was we started dialoguing with U. S.

4 Fish and Wildlife back, I think, in April on this site.

5 Then we stopped.

6              We -- we -- we restarted that dialogue with

7 those guys about three weeks ago, and basically where it

8 wound up was they wanted to check with the mussel people

9 before they issued their blessing.  But basically we

10 submitted our operations plan to them, and we just spoke

11 with Jane Ledwin by e-mail on Monday I think of this week.

12 So I guess yesterday.  It was either Friday or Monday.  And

13 they've given their blessing to this.  So we've got the all

14 clear of the U. S. Fish and Wildlife.  They have no

15 concerns.

16                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Mr.

17 Chairman, can I ask several questions?

18                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  All right, Jay.

19                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  On your

20 dredging operation, are you talking about one dredge or are

21 you talking about two dredges potentially being there to do

22 the operation there?

23                        MR. LUEKEN:  No, it'll be one dredge.

24                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  One

25 dredge.



 PUBLIC HEARINGS  11/15/2016

www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334
MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES

Page 61

1                        MR. LUEKEN:  Uh-huh.

2                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  And the

3 dredge be of the same -- same size that you're using

4 currently over in the other plant operation on this?

5                        MR. LUEKEN:  I'll tell you what we'll

6 do, Jay.  I'll have Lyn come up and answer that question

7 because I don't know for sure.  Is that okay?

8                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  That

9 will be fine.

10                        MR. LUEKEN:  Okay.

11                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Has anyone had --

12                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Well, yeah.

13                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Cameron, why don't

14 you stay up front.

15                        MR. LUEKEN:  Sure.

16                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Let em

17 ask a couple of other questions.

18                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Sure.

19                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Get me

20 thinking straight here again.

21              That area floods regularly when the Meramec

22 floods there.  Okay.  Is that dredge doing to be remain on

23 the property when the -- when that flooding occurs?  Are you

24 going -- is it the thinking there that you're going to move

25 that dredge off of the property any time it floods, or
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1 what -- do you know if there is a plan conditioned upon

2 that?

3                        MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah.  I'll let Lyn

4 speak to that, but basically that dredge floats.  And so

5 that they'll do is they'll moor it like a boat to some

6 point.  They'll pull it in more to a point so it doesn't get

7 twisted down the river.  But I can let Lyn speak to that.

8 But it floats.

9                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  You

10 were talking earlier in the night where there is a creek

11 that -- well, it's a dry creek that flows through there for

12 stormwater.

13                        MR. LUEKEN:  Correct.

14                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  And

15 when there is, have you measured as to how much of a impact

16 that potentially will have upon the berm hitting that --  I

17 mean, that water hitting that berm and where that water

18 potentially will go at that point, or is that creek far

19 enough away from this berm to where it will not impact the

20 flow of that water that comes through that creek area?

21                        MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah, that's a good

22 question.  So basically what happens is in that particular

23 area, I'll try explain this as best I can.

24              So as the creeks enter into a larger floodplain

25 like the Meramec, what happens is the base flood elevation
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1 is controlled by not the smaller creek but the bigger creek.

2 In this case the Meramec River.

3              So in this case what's going to happen is that

4 that creek is not a regulated base level elevation.  The

5 Meramec controls it.  So to answer your question, the creek

6 will not be impacted by the berm to a degree that will

7 change the base level elevation or alter the flow path of

8 the creek in that area.

9                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  So

10 potentially are a significant quick downpour of some inches

11 of water, it should -- you're saying it should not

12 potentially have a potential change to the flow of the water

13 in that creek?

14                        MR. LUEKEN:  Correct.  Correct.

15                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Is that

16 what you're saying?

17                        MR. LUEKEN:  Correct.

18                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Okay.

19 Thank you.

20              Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  I'll turn it over.

21                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  You talked

22 about the lake. Is there going to be a spillway on this lake

23 or --

24                        MR. LUEKEN:  No.  There will be no

25 connection to the Meramec.
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1                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  So if the

2 lake overflows, basically the river comes up, it overflows?

3                        MR. LUEKEN:  Yes.  So to answer your

4 question, basically what happens is that if the -- in the

5 event of a flood event that overtops the high bank, it will

6 fill this excavated area, you might say.  All right.

7              Based upon that, as it dewaters itself, there's

8 not going to be a -- I should say, a spillway to the

9 Meramec.  It's basically going to dewater itself through

10 the, I guess, the bank you might say, the natural -- the

11 area, as you can imagine ,is full of gravel.  So it's going

12 to percolate back out through the bank.  It's not going to

13 be -- go out through a spillway.  So it's going to just

14 naturally go down, let's say.

15              It'll be like another -- it'll be like any

16 other floodplain you might say.

17                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Okay.  Well,

18 the concern that I would have is if it would create its own

19 spillway over time while you're doing this excavation, and

20 then you've got no -- you may be a hundred feet away from

21 it, but once it's connected with water due to flooding,

22 you're not a hundred feet away from the river.  There's a

23 direct path.

24                        MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah.  So basically if

25 there ever would be an occurrence that -- say there would be
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1 a catastrophic event that would breach that bank, Lyn would

2 be -- Lyn would repair that make.

3                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Okay.

4                        MR. LUEKEN:  Let me make share.

5 So --

6                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  So it'd be

7 maintained basically?

8                        MR. LUEKEN:  Correct.

9                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Okay.

10                        MR. LUEKEN:  And that's part of that

11 DNR permit.

12                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Got you

13 because I'm not familiar with --

14                        MR. LUEKEN:  Right.

15                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  -- what all

16 that is.  Okay, thanks.

17                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Bill?

18                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  I got a couple

19 of questions.  I've sat here and did a little bit of math.

20 So there is about 17,000 truckloads a year that's going to

21 go out of there?  Well, that's my math.

22                        MR. LUEKEN:  Okay, yeah.

23                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  I'm not asking

24 you to agree with it.  There's going -- it says there's

25 sales.  So they're obviously selling to other contractors.
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1 What percent of this rock is used by Havin Materials, as

2 opposed to what's sold by other people?

3                        MR. LUEKEN:  Right.  So can I have

4 Lyn come up and answer that question, because I don't know

5 for sure?

6                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Yeah, because

7 I'm going to it once I do that.

8                        MR. LUEKEN:  Okay.

9                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Sure.

10                        MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah.

11                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Let's -- Cameron, go

12 ahead and answer any other questions because we can only

13 have one person at the podium at a time.  Any more?

14                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Probably not.

15 Most of it's economic.

16                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Thank you.

17              Please state your name and address and sign in,

18 please.

19                        MS. LYN HAVIN:  Lyn Havin, 3810 Iron

20 Hill Road, Union, Missouri.

21                        [Thereupon, the witness was sworn.]

22                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Go ahead, Bill.

23                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  So my -- my

24 question was I kind of did some math based on 5 days a week

25 and 48 weeks out of the year that's going to be about 17,000
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1 loads of aggregate go out of that plant a year.

2                        MS. HAVIN:  Yes.

3                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  How much of

4 that is used by your company and I'm assuming you will sell

5 to other people.

6                        MS. HAVIN:  Yeah.

7                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  So what

8 percentage of it do you use and what percentage goes to

9 other people?

10                        MS. HAVIN:  We will be hauling out of

11 there to our Ready-Mix plants with four trucks, and those

12 trucks will make about six trips a day of our trucks, six

13 round trips, which will be 12 basically.

14              We will be able to open up our sales to other

15 Ready-Mix companies in the area, which we have been unable

16 to do for many years now.  So I've had to turn them away.

17 We've all been pretty much stuck with using limestone, which

18 only been stuck with it, it's been an okay product, but it's

19 not the quality that we're needing.

20              So the majority or I don['t want to say

21 majority.  I'm going to say probably 50 percent would go to

22 other Ready-Mix companies in the area.

23                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  So will they

24 be required to use the same haul road designation down

25 Highway TT as your trucks, or once --
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1                        MS. HAVIN:  Yes.

2                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  -- they get

3 out on the road, they can go however they want to towards

4 their plant if they're going to Highway 30 or something?

5                        MS. HAVIN:  No.  We're going to

6 request that they go Highway TT.  I actually live really

7 close to Highway TT.  So I understand everyone's concerns,

8 but no.  We will request that route.  Obviously, if someone

9 comes in with a single-axle and on their own, we can't stop

10 them from using Mill Hill.

11              Anybody coming out of there though with a

12 tandem or a trailer, there is no way possible that they are

13 going to want to make a left and go out Mill Hill Road.

14                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  I understand

15 that.

16                        MS. HAVIN:  Right.

17                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  And agree, but

18 they could go down Bethel Church our across --

19                        MR. HAVIN:  True.

20                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  -- across

21 somewhere that way.

22                        MS. HAVIN:  Correct.  Yes.

23                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  So my real

24 curiosity but how much of this will stay in the Franklin

25 County area versus how much will go to St. Louis County or
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1 Jefferson County?

2                        MS. HAVIN:  We anticipate a hundred

3 percent staying in Franklin County.

4                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Okay.  So then

5 how -- what's the taxes that the County will expect to get

6 out of this?  What's the benefit to the County is -- versus

7 the where with 17,000 -- with 34,000 trips actually a year,

8 you know, what's the tax benefit to the County versus to the

9 damages to the potential road surfaces?

10                        MS. HAVIN:  I have not done that

11 math, but I -- it's huge.  It's got to be.  I have not done

12 that math, sir, but it would be a lot.

13                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other questions?

14                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Lyn,

15 could you answer the question that I asked?  I understand

16 now you're going to have one dredge there.  The size of the

17 dredge, is it going to be similar to your operation, current

18 operation, over off of Highway 30 area?  Is that the size

19 you're going to have, or are you expanding the size of that

20 dredge operation?

21                        MS. HAVIN:  Actually, it will be

22 smaller than that one.  The one that we're going to get for

23 the lake is actually a smaller, quieter dredge than the one

24 that we actually have now.  They are used for lakes more

25 than rivers.  So no, it will not be the same dredge.  This
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1 is a smaller, smaller dredge.

2                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  And

3 you're going to have some areas of supply there on your

4 property I'm sure there with the aggregate.  Do you have any

5 idea how much your supply will potentially be stored on your

6 property there at the plant or anything?  Do you have any

7 idea potentially?

8                        MS. HAVIN:  I do not, to be honest.

9 We intend to run hopefully 150 -- between 100 and 150 tons

10 an hour.  It's going to depend on the demand, people coming

11 in to purchase it.  So I really can't tell you how much

12 would be there at any given time.  It's going to depend on

13 the consumers.

14                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Okay.

15 Thank you.

16                        MS. HAVIN:  You're welcome.

17                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other questions?

18 [None]

19              Thank you.

20                        MS. HAVIN:  Thank you.

21                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other questions

22 then for Cameron?  [None]

23              If not, is there anyone else present wishing to

24 speak in favor of the CUP?  Anyone in favor? [None]

25              Is there anyone present who would like to speak
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1 in opposition to the CUP?

2                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  I'd like to

3 request a five-minute break before we get into that.

4                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  All right, Russell.

5 We'll come back at exactly 20 minutes till.

6                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Thank you.

7                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  We're in recess.

8                        [Thereupon, a break was taken at 9:33

9                   until 9:43 p.m.; after which, the

10                   proceedings continued as follows:]

11                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Commission, is now

12 back in session.

13              I know there are several people here to speak

14 in opposition, and apparently have the presentation.  So

15 you'll have time to give that, but since we have so many

16 additional witnesses, they would be limited to no more than

17 five minutes.  And we ask that if you do want to speak, that

18 you have some evidence and that it not all be repeat or

19 redundant.

20              Please state your name and address and sign in,

21 please.

22                        MR. NICK NORMAN:  My name is Nick

23 Norman, and my address is 783 Lost Hill Lake Road.

24                        [Thereupon, the witness was sworn.]

25              Thank you, everyone, for allowing us to speak
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1 tonight.  My name is Nick, and I'm here representing a group

2 of 25 citizens who are part of Citizens for the Preservation

3 of the Meramec River.  My home is just west of these

4 proposed mines.  I'll be primarily be taking about Mine

5 Number 2 tonight I'm going to refer to, that's the Brunts'

6 Mine.  This is Jeffries Open Pit Mine.  That's Mine Number

7 1.

8              So if you have any questions, also feel free to

9 interrupt.  I love questions or comments or anything.

10              I am auto a zoologist, and when I've lived here

11 my whole life, I've noticed the bat population started to

12 increase a little bit over time.  And in the past few years

13 it's really taken a big bump.  And I've noticed that there

14 are these bats in these areas, and I contacted U. S. Fish

15 and Wildlife.  There is Jane.  Havin also contacted U. S.

16 Fish and Wildlife on May -- in May, and they basically

17 stated that there are no known endanger or species in the

18 area.  And I kind of fought that argument because there was

19 never really a study that had been done.  I am very study

20 driven, and I could see that there were bats.  I wasn't sure

21 what species there were, but I just needed some evidence as

22 to what they were.

23              So Shelley Pulaski from Missouri Department

24 conservation, who is a bat and cave biologist and Sybill

25 Amelon from U. S. Forestry Service came out and did a survey
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1 on one of old abandoned lead mines on the property.  And

2 within about ten minutes of us putting up the nets, we were

3 overrun by gray bats.  The nets were so overweighted that we

4 actually had to take them down.  We caught around 200 in 10

5 minutes.

6              Gray bats are federally protected endangered

7 species, and I've -- U. S. Fish and Wildlife have now

8 acknowledged that there are endangered species in the area.

9 So we are in correlation with them as well.  And basically

10 they just need a little bit more time.  We're going to kind

11 of propose that a year-long environmental impact study be

12 done to try to figure out where these bats are going.

13              And so this is basically where the bat colony

14 is.  It's hard to see, but it's a little bit less than 300

15 feet from this proposed mine.  The entrance to this cave is

16 about 600 feet.  But as you're going through Lost Hill, that

17 mountain, you're -- actually every step you take you're

18 going step towards Mine Number 2.  So extremely close.

19              Here's a quick video of the bats exiting the

20 cave that we take.  It's infrared.  There are just

21 thousands.  Huge, huge number. It's like something out the

22 "Batman" when you're standing in front of there.  It's a

23 huge population.  It's a maternity colony.  There are --

24 it's basically mature females, reproducing females,

25 lactating females, juvenile females, juvenile males, all



 PUBLIC HEARINGS  11/15/2016

www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334
MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES

Page 74

1 that.  They're all -- all in there doing their thing.

2              So it wasn't till recently on November 5th,

3 just this past couple of weeks, that we had a geological

4 survey done on the mine. That was led by Michael Bradford.

5 He's with the U. S. Geological Survey.  Basically just the

6 purpose of this study was to map the mine, see how strong it

7 is, chart all biological species, and it preserved guano

8 levels.  So what they found is that the guano is actually

9 several feet deep -- feet thick, and at first we thought

10 there were a few thousand, but a conservative estimate is

11 10,000, probably more in the 20 to 25,000 range of all

12 federally protected endangered species.

13              The mine is incredibly week.  It is the

14 miner -- the lead miners actually followed a vein, a fault

15 line in the mountain where all the lead bubbled up from.  So

16 I included it.  I think it's Exhibit 1 of your packet of

17 Michael's findings, and he notes on there how brittle this

18 mine is, and how dangerous it also is.

19              The guano is actually so thick that it's

20 actually created a dam and holding back water.  It's about

21 four or four feet thick at least.  And that only allowed

22 them to survey 137 feet of the 300 feet.  So kind more  --

23 basically more studies need to be done to see how many bats

24 are back there and how well the population is doing.

25              We didn't find any white noise syndrome or
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1 anything like that.

2              So here's kind of a cave cutout off Lost Hill.

3 Here's the cave entrance, and like I said, it was about 300

4 feet.  But every step you take back is more.  It gets

5 closer.  So it's around 300 feet we believe.  And Michael

6 noted that any dump trucks or excavators basically that's so

7 close to this brittle, brittle mine it will cause damage.

8 It could potentially cause the entire cave to collapse.

9              We have several on the property and four in my

10 lifetime have already collapsed.  But this one held on

11 through the years.  It's one of the bigger ones.  So we feel

12 as if this will definitely cause this entire maternity

13 colony to be annihilated in just an instant.

14              So if we forget about the bats, just that was

15 imagine how concerned the public health and safety concerns

16 is just a mess.  It is -- Mill Hill Road and Highway TT are

17 like the Auto Ban and "Mad Max" combined.  There kids --

18 stupid kids go there on there constantly going really high

19 rates of speed, and it has -- Mill Hill has two locations

20 that are -- that are called dead man's curve that, you know,

21 people have died on.

22              And Highway TT also has crosses on it.  There

23 are at least two crosses within a couple of miles of Mine

24 Number 2.  Just of people getting in accidents, and that's

25 without 17,000 dump trucks a year coming in and out of
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1 there.  Now, I know you guys have heard of road complaints

2 all the time. I'm not going to waste your time with much

3 about it, but I just wanted to mention that really the

4 Meramec bridge, this is actually a culvert that's right --

5 actually Mine Number 2 is right on the other side of it.

6 That's that creek that one of the Commissioners was talking

7 about or it being a dry creek.

8              This is another one.  I think it hooks up to

9 Cove Creek, and it's about two slabs of concrete by itself.

10 That is going to Highway TT, and once you go over this, you

11 actually go up a huge steep hill that's -- it's going to be

12 real tough to do with 20 tons of aggregate on the back.

13              Here's some shots of River Bend Road.  You

14 know, our concerns again are the -- just the destruction of

15 the road with trucks not being up to Code, the broken mud

16 flaps.  We have observed ripped tarps.  School buses being

17 presented and the -- you know, having children on there

18 during hours of operation.  It's a big concern.

19              All of our fears have come to life with River

20 Bend Road and now the looming threat of Mill Hill is a big

21 concern.  Meramec bridge, I urge all of you to go take a

22 drive and see this bridge.  It's about 435 feet long, and

23 it's a blind curve.  I know they say that's not their

24 primary route, but again, if they're selling, you're not

25 going to be able to stop people from going whatever way that
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1 they want.  It's about 19 and a half feet wide, which a

2 standard truck is 7 to 10 feet.  So these dump trucks would

3 have to go outside of the white line onto the concrete

4 barrier to pass one another.  So incredibly dangerous.

5              You can say all you want that they're only

6 going to take a specific route, but when you're selling

7 aggregate out of that place, you can't control other people.

8 You just can't.  They are going to take whatever way that

9 they want.  And a lot of those drivers are paid by the load.

10 So they are racing to get back to drop off another load to

11 get another one.

12              This is right at the top of Mine Number 2.

13 This is dead man's curve.  It's less than a 90-degree angle,

14 and from 102 River Cabin Road right there, it's only about

15 50 feet, 30 to 50 feet.  Kids zip around this corner

16 constantly.  It's an issue.  It's a terrifying corner.

17 People honk their horns going around it because it's so

18 dangerous.  Again, trucks are going to go there.  It's going

19 to happen.  There is going to be a school bus and a truck

20 meeting there one day.  It's going to happen.  The postman

21 delivering mail there, it's going to happen.  The chances

22 are too great for this -- for this threat.

23              So basically all the roads leading to this mine

24 are completely unsafe.  Mill Hill, you know, TT is State-

25 funded.  They need an overweight permit for that.  TT is
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1 again a terrifying road.  High speed limit, sharp hairpin

2 turns.  It was not designed for anything like this

3 whatsoever.

4              Another concern is Hootie's Rescue Haven.  Dr.

5 Kim Lynch is going to probably be speaking, and I'm just

6 going to introduce it.  But Hootie's Haven -- Hootie's

7 Rescue Haven is about -- their property border almost

8 borders the mines.  It's within 600 feet. It's the only

9 no-kill shelter in Franklin County, and Kim's going to most

10 likely talk about how the stress to these animals that are

11 neglected, abused, are trying to rehabilitate, the stress of

12 all these dump trucks is going to cause the healing process

13 to be definitely impacted from these animals.

14              So again, you guys kind of touched base on this

15 by causing a weak spot in the Meramec, even though, you

16 know, they are supposed to be a hundred-foot buffer, having

17 two mines, one directly across from the -- from one another

18 just seems so silly in my mind.  This community has been

19 through a lot with these mines, and what's worse than one

20 mine?  That's two mines right next to each other.  So its'

21 tough.

22              In the way I've lived on the river my whole

23 life.  So I kind of know how it works.  Whenever it floods,

24 there is Lost Hill right here, which is really large, but

25 there is also a large field right here.  And the water
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1 actually, when it floods, picks up a huge amount of speed.

2 It has actually almost a mile to pick up speed, and it slams

3 this field.  I mean, it slams it like a jet.  The water

4 comes there with a huge amount of speed.  I know the people

5 that live in those cabins can testify to it.  They have had

6 to rebuild their cabins a couple of times.  It's a real

7 danger, and I can prove it because this is satellite that

8 was taken from January 1.  And this is tons of sand being

9 pushed hundreds and hundreds of feet into this field, and

10 that's right where their processing facility is.  That is

11 evidence of the river.  That's a scar of the river.

12              So back in our big December flood, the water

13 just -- it has nowhere to go except for that field, and it

14 goes and it goes an incredible amount of speed, and it shows

15 it with all that sand from -- and this is January 2016.  It

16 just gets pushed hundreds of feet in, and if that processing

17 facility, it's directly right where they said it was going

18 to go, all that current.  That's go to slam that field.

19              Another issue is farming.  This field has been

20 used to farm for 50 years at least, if not more.  Farm

21 fields are disappearing all throughout the United States.

22 It will never be used again to feed people.  The American

23 Farm Land Trust Association estimates that 40 plus acres of

24 farmland is lost to development like this every hour.  Forty

25 plus acres of U. S. farmland is lost to developments like
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1 this every hour.  So by approving this permit, you will be

2 contributing to this statistic by about an hour, hour and a

3 half.  We need room to feed people and it's disappearing.

4 They're not make more farmland.

5              Again, the particulates.  You know, the diesel

6 and everything.  It's going to be a threat just with 17,000

7 drum trucks a year.  It's going to have an impact no matter

8 what.  We all retreated to this community to be, you know,

9 in the country, and this completely strips that of that.

10              You know, the other public health and safety

11 concerns, they're you know, the noise.  The same person who

12 does the mail route does River Bend about Mill Hill.  So

13 they would be dealing with both mines throughout their

14 entire route.  I, you know, have had to swerve for the mail

15 person on Highway TT several times.  People are just going

16 so fast, and when the mail professional is delivering mail

17 it's a big threat.  The River Round Conservation area is

18 just right downstream.  These unfamiliar trucks in this area

19 that are going to be buying from this location is also --

20 that's also a big threat.  Also the school buses.

21              Property value loss, you know.  You can say

22 that, you know, that a golf coarse may, you know -- well,

23 it's -- that it doesn't affect property value, the one

24 that's right next to the processing facility, but it does.

25              This was Winter Brothers mine that was being
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1 proposed in Eureka, a large surface mine similar to this

2 one, got Dr. Hite from, I think, Georgia University. She's a

3 real estate professional.  Did a year-long study about the

4 impacts of proposed gravel mines to the residents in the

5 area.  She determined that you can lose by -- property value

6 by up to 20 percent next to these mines.

7              So here's the map kind correlated to that.  It

8 just skims into St. Clair.  No one really wants to live next

9 to a mine.  Here's a brief history.  I'm not going to go

10 through all these.  You know, you guys know them.  You

11 approved them.  You denied them.  The only thing I want you

12 to note is that December 30, 2015 the dredge was closed

13 indefinitely.  DNR basically said they were destructing too

14 many mussels in the river.  And they kicked a shark out of

15 water and gave a lake.  I was never against the dredge to

16 begin with.  I was all for it.  The river can heal that, and

17 when it's in the river.  But when you go out of the river,

18 it can't heal that.  I can prove it because here is the

19 Brunts' gravel bar that was permitted in May 24, 2013,

20 before it was harvested.  Here is after it was harvested in

21 November 2013.  Have did exactly what they were supposed to

22 do.  They left these little islands around this stupid brush

23 that I don't know DNR makes them keep, but they do.

24              And they scrape the surface of these gravel

25 bars, and again this gravel bar is actually permitted
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1 indefinitely.  So they can go back to this gravel bar any

2 time they want.  This is after it's mined.  Underwater.

3 There's almost no gravel let, but the river can heal itself,

4 which is evidenced right here.

5              This is after the big flood of December 2015.

6 The gravel bar was almost completely replenished.  The

7 gravel can heal that scab that -- that's so close to the

8 river.  But once you create a hundred-foot buffer, the

9 damage is done.  The river can't heal that.  It'll be a

10 stagnant lake forever.  If you stay in the water or if you

11 stay on the gravel bars, the river can heal that.  It can

12 fix itself.

13              Here is the Little Meramec and the Meramec in

14 November 2013.  Again, the little islands.  They did exactly

15 what they were supposed to do and left the stupid little

16 brush.  This is after it was mined.  And this is after of

17 the flood of December 2015.  Significantly more gravel was

18 dumped back into that area.

19              Here it is again before the flood after it was

20 harvested.  Here it is after the flood of 2015.  If not more

21 gravel is present on that gravel bar than where they left it

22 because the river can heal that.  Once there is a

23 hundred-foot buffer, you can't -- river can't fix that

24 damage.

25              Here Is there -- some of the old stagnant, old
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1 mines that they have, the mines that Havin has done over the

2 past 50 years or more.  Highway 30 is just down here.

3 Here's some goo that's oozing from their processing

4 facility.  They just become stagnant lakes, and kind like

5 again what the Commissioner said, the river finds a way in.

6 That hundred-foot buffer fails and it does.  Here's a little

7 hole that actually created a perfect spawning ground for

8 invasive by Asian carp.  Those are those pesky horrible

9 species that flood the Meramec. They're just terrible for

10 the environment.  Creates a perfect breeding ground for

11 them.  Again, they become stagnant, disgusting lakes that

12 aren't maintained, that aren't beneficial to society

13 whatsoever.  These are actually all dead trees right here.

14 They're huge dying trees.  They look like ants there, but

15 they're actually giant logs.  It just is not maintained, and

16 it's just everyone who boats the Meramec will tell you it's

17 a disgusting place.  The fish are really good, but other

18 than that, it's just -- it's disgusting.

19              Here's some of the mining locations around our

20 area.  This community has been overrun by these mines, and

21 we can only take so much.  It's just they're everywhere, and

22 when will enough be enough?  You know, the river cannot heal

23 all this.  It'll eventually just be the Meramec River with

24 lake side view everywhere, up and down the river.  We've got

25 to put a stop to it sometime or only allow permitted areas
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1 on the gravel bars for the dredge to be back open.  But

2 that's up to DNR.

3              If something is passed like this, it'll

4 basically be unprecedented because, when you think of larger

5 mining locations like this, they're next to major highways.

6 You know, when you go down 44, you can see them all over the

7 place.  And they're next to major highways is because these

8 dump trucks are so dangerous.  And exiting out of the quarry

9 they're their own private -- the gravel mining company

10 maintains their own roads, and it's a very safe place for

11 these trucks to enter and exit.

12              Here from these two mines, we are miles away

13 from any major highway.  It's just unprecedented for

14 something like this.  That is right in the public's face

15 where there's children, where there is postal service,

16 sanitation professionals and just residents.  It doesn't

17 make logical sense to put a mine here that is so far away

18 from a major road.

19              Then we also have this letter, you know, that

20 also concerns us.  You can put all the conditions you want

21 on this permit, but again, they could argue that none of

22 these conditions, they have to follow them because Franklin

23 County doesn't have jurisdiction over a mine.  So we are

24 also, you know, worried about that as well.

25              So if Havin is allowed to mine, you know, the
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1 effects that's going to have a huge environmental effect.

2 The landscape's going to be done.  It's going to be a

3 stagnant lake forever.  Mill Hill Road is going to take a

4 big hit.  This is actually Eureka at 109.  It'll be simular

5 to that operation.

6              Also we didn't know that the land was for sale,

7 and we are so petrified of this mine.  Our community is so

8 petrified that so far five neighbors are looking to purchase

9 this 60-acre parcel.  You know, the Brunses don't know that.

10 We have kind of been meeting and talking about what we can

11 afford and what we can do.  But the land isn't purchased

12 yet.  It's not -- it's pending.  It's a pending contract.

13 Ozark Regional Land Trust will be involved in the purchase.

14 That's how scared we are.  We are willing to take that into

15 effect and take care of this situation ourselves because we

16 are bidding out of fear and passion, and they are bidding

17 out of profit.  And it terrifies us.

18              In conclusion, in the master copy, I have a

19 petition with over 700 signatures.  And in your copy, in the

20 back, I have signatures, hand signatures, from the residents

21 of Mill Hill and Highway TT and Bethel Church all there,

22 several pages of it.  You can see their addresses there.

23 There's over 300 comments in the Franklin County -- from

24 citizens of Franklin County in the master copy up here.

25              And I understand that we need sand and gravel
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1 for concrete, the foundation of our society.  It's an

2 invention that's thousands of years old.  I get it.  We need

3 it to have concrete.  I'm anti-unsafe mining.  I'm not

4 anti-mining. I'm anti-unsafe mining, and this mine is

5 unsafe.  And please drive the road yourself.  Drive Highway

6 TT, drive Mill Hill, and drive it yourself and tell me

7 how -- how safe you think it is.

8              It's just not logical sense to put a mine there

9 in something that's so far tucked back in the boonies that

10 there are just so many people that it'll affect.  And I

11 don't care about our business, our wedding venue.  What I

12 care about is my family's safety, and that's the main focus,

13 is not -- not our business.  Who cares when it comes to my

14 family directly being impacted by this, their health and

15 safety.

16              Does anyone have any questions?

17                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Sure.

18                        MR. NORMAN:  Yes.

19                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Couple of

20 things piqued my interest.

21                        MR. NORMAN:  Sure.

22                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  You made a

23 statement that says vibrations will cause damage to the

24 mine.

25                        MR. NORMAN:  Yes.
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1                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Okay.  Do you

2 have any information, calculations, anything that would back

3 that up?

4                        MR. NORMAN:  Michael Bradford was the

5 geologist that did this study.  And I'm only taking his

6 expert opinion that it has the potential to do it.  We just

7 don't have enough time.  We haven't had enough time to

8 conduct any of those studies.

9              We would love to.  Yes, we would love for Havin

10 to.  We would love to see how the vibrations travel

11 throughout the ground and would affect this brittle lead

12 mine that's 300 feet away.

13                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Okay.  You

14 also made a statement about needing an overweight permit on

15 TT.

16                        MR. NORMAN:  I called MoDOT and asked

17 if -- if there was a 20-ton truck.  This was back in May

18 whenever.  I wasn't able to talk about it during the

19 meeting.  I called MoDOT, and the supervisor there said that

20 if there was a processing facility or a large operation,

21 that because it's a state highway, they would need an

22 overweight permit to use their Highway TT, their state

23 highway.

24                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Interesting.

25                        MR. NORMAN:  That's what I was told.
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1 That's what I was told, that if it's over a certain amount,

2 I -- that was MoDOT itself.

3                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Well, we

4 don't get any permits.  I guess we are a non-community.

5                        MR. NORMAN:  Well, I can do more

6 research, but that's what I was --

7                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  It just

8 shocks me.

9                        MR. NORMAN:  That's what I was told

10 by a supervisor.

11                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  The only --

12 the only time I need an overweight permit is when you're

13 overweight.

14                        MR. NORMAN:  Right.

15                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  You know, if

16 you're legally loaded, I find that odd, --

17                        MR. NORMAN:  Right.

18                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  -- but anyway

19 it is what it is.  You also made the statement about the

20 lost in property value, but you used another site.  I

21 assume there's been nothing done on the current site and

22 location to do what they did in, what was that, Eureka?

23                        MR. NORMAN:  Yes, that was in Eureka,

24 and that took a little over a year.  We're working with real

25 estate agents and real estate professionals to piggyback off
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1 of Dr. Hite's research.

2                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Okay.  I

3 think that's it.

4                        MR. NORMAN:  Sure.

5                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other questions

6 for Mr. Norman?

7                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:

8 Mr. Chairman, I do have a couple of questions if you

9 wouldn't mine.

10              Can you show where the bats enter or are they

11 -- you --

12                        MR. NORMAN:  Yeah.

13                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Are you

14 talking about on the opposite side of where this operation

15 is to being coming --

16                        MR. NORMAN:  Correct.

17                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  --

18 being proposed?

19                        MR. NORMAN:  Correct.  It is on

20 the -- I believe that is the west side of the hill, and that

21 entrance is 600 feet from the second mine.

22                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Well,

23 you raised questions about potential issue of the bats

24 potentially, but am I wrong, since you're the zoologist,

25 that the bats strive on mosquitoes, and a lake basically is
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1 somewhat stagnant brings out more mosquitoes, does it not?

2                        MR. NORMAN:  Absolutely, but we don't

3 know much about gray bat diet.  They are really elusive

4 species that we don't -- there hasn't been much study done

5 on it, but they do feed over water most of the time.  Every

6 biologist I've talked to said that the potential gain out of

7 this does not outweigh the direct negative effect of

8 creating that dead zone for the next ten years.  Bats are

9 very picky on where they feed, and if a place is destroyed,

10 they're gone.  They are going to move.  They have to.

11 Energy is everything to them, and getting to that -- water

12 is not the problem.  There's plenty of water everywhere.

13 That does -- that doesn't -- water isn't the problem.

14              What the problem is, is the insects that are

15 currently there that are going to be either forced to move

16 or that are killed will strip them of their feeding habit

17 and of their nutrition to repopulate.  Does that make sense?

18                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  It

19 does.  But I am a little bit -- when you say that this lake

20 will serve no purpose, but when you see these sand bars

21 continuing in the Meramec River to get more and more built

22 up of gravel, okay, or the aggregate, and when this is

23 flooding, as you pointed out, in this area, it floods a

24 pretty good amount of sand and aggregate into that field.

25 Okay?
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1                        MR. NORMAN:  Right.

2                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Doesn't

3 that potentially help to keep the gravel and sand from

4 depositing somewhere downstream from it, because it's now

5 being collected in a place that has become a void;

6 therefore, the flooding will begin to -- begin to fill that

7 lake back up, would it not?

8                        MR. NORMAN:  Right.  I'm not --

9                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Or am I

10 missing something there?

11                        MR. NORMAN:  I'm not a hydroponics

12 expert, but that's an argument for 50 to a hundred years

13 down the road, I feel like.  Sure, it can fill the lake back

14 up during another hundred year flood.  But when the lake is

15 empty and then filled with water and that gravel gets pushed

16 back in.  So now we're going to have a lake with a giant

17 pile of gravel sticking up in it?  If it fills it, it won't

18 be the same as what it was.

19                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  At some

20 point down, you think in other words, would solve basically

21 as the field as it is now.

22                        MR. NORMAN:  That deposit probably

23 took five million years, if not more, to fill that, to

24 give -- to push all that sand and gravel into there.  Right

25 now, the farmer, whenever the sands is dumped, he just tills
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1 it back into the soil, and it just mixes in with the dirt.

2              So yeah, a couple of million good years down

3 the road, it could fill back up.

4                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  When

5 you talk about safety of the trucks, and I'm familiar, as I

6 think you know, with the area and that.  Mill Hill is a

7 steep hill coming back up for any type of vehicles.  When

8 you say truck traffic is a concern, would you be in favor of

9 limiting the trucks to a certain -- only for the purpose of

10 Havin trucks and not to sell material out of the plant that

11 potentially could be coming about there?  How -- would you

12 be agreeable with that?  I'm just curious how far --

13                        MR. NORMAN:  Right.

14                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  -- your

15 concern is with the trucks is what I'm asking for.

16                        MR. NORMAN:  One life isn't worth

17 concrete.  That's what I have to say.  It is dangerous.

18                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Okay.

19                        MR. NORMAN:  I don't know.  I would

20 have to talk with the other members of the group before we

21 even become anywhere near that.

22                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Okay.

23 I'm just curiosity.  Thank you, Mr. Norman.

24                        MR. NORMAN:  Yeah, absolutely.

25                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other questions,
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1 Scottie?

2                        MS. EAGAN:  I could have

3 misunderstood when you did your PowerPoint, but the study

4 that was done in November by Mr. Bradford --

5                        MR. NORMAN:  Yes, Michael Bradford.

6                        MS. EAGAN:  -- from what I got from

7 your PowerPoint is he said that this proposed mine would

8 cause these bats potentially to leave and would cause -- the

9 trucks would cause the mines to collapse, correct?

10                        MR. NORMAN:  He said that's an

11 option.  That is a potential threat, and I think he said on

12 there his opinion is that, if -- you know, if the mining

13 company doesn't disturb the bats or disturb the insects,

14 then they are free to mine.  But he doesn't really believe

15 that, and I don't think -- I mean, when you're going to mine

16 ten acres on one side of the river and then, you know, 50 or

17 30 on the other side, it's going to create a dead zone.

18 It's going to definitely harm the bats.  That's what -- kind

19 of what he was saying, that it will affect the feeding

20 behavior.  It'll cause the bats to leave.

21                        MS. EAGAN:  Okay.  Is there a reason

22 why he didn't put that in his letter more clearly?

23                        MR. NORMAN:  He put -- he put it at

24 the top of his opinion that, if the mining company doesn't

25 disrupt the insects or strong vibrations through the cave,
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1 then they will not harm the bat population.  He did not have

2 a direct -- this issue has become extremely political, and

3 people have become reclusive and scared, and fearful of

4 losing their jobs.  And Michael is the first one to really

5 come out and try to help.  So he is liberal with his words.

6                        MS. EAGAN:  Right, because from what

7 I read, nowhere in there does it say, yes, he thinks this is

8 going to happen.

9                        MR. NORMAN:  He says that, if the

10 mining company doesn't affect the insect population or the

11 vibrations from the mine itself, it will not affect the

12 bats.  That is what he's saying.

13                        MS. EAGAN:  Okay.  But to you it

14 means he is saying he thinks it's going to happen?

15                        MR. NORMAN:  It's a -- it's a

16 statement that can be inverted.

17                        MS. EAGAN:  Okay.

18                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other questions

19 from the Commissioners?

20                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Yeah.  I have

21 a question.  On this mine that you did a survey, you never

22 made it all the way to the back, you say it's 130 feet?

23                        MR. NORMAN:  Yep.  And it's over 300,

24 but because of the guano dam, the four feet of guano that

25 was up to their chests, it was holding back too much water.
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1 It actually created a void of water and guano that was over

2 12 feet deep.  And they have -- they're like we can't do

3 this until we have more equipment.  So they are planning on

4 coming back December or January.

5                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Okay.  It's

6 been several years ago, but I was active with the Cub

7 Scouts, and we went on several outings.  And I know the

8 Missouri Conservation of Fisher cave -- I don't know if

9 you're --

10                        MR. NORMAN:  Yeah.  Jane Fisher is a

11 descendent of mine.

12                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Well, they

13 shut it down November 1st --

14                        MR. NORMAN:  Right.

15                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  -- because of

16 the bats.

17                        MR. NORMAN:  Yep.

18                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  And I'm just

19 kind of -- I saw you went in there November 5th.  I mean,

20 you're more of an expert than we are, but that's something

21 we learned.

22                        MR. NORMAN:  I connected with

23 Shelley, and she said December 1st for gray bats --

24                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Okay.

25                        MR. NORMAN:  -- is more a acceptable
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1 timeline.  They're kind of in between the hibernating, that

2 some are still migrating.  They're kind of on the tail end

3 of migrating and it's the hibernation season.  We didn't see

4 a single bat because they're further back either hibernating

5 or they have left that cave to their big hyper-cambium is

6 what it's called, where this -- these eight caves across the

7 United States house one million gray bats, which is what's

8 left in the word.  So almost 100 percent of their population

9 is in these eight caves where they hibernate where we don't

10 know if they hibernate at this cave.  We have no idea

11 because we couldn't reach the end.

12                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Okay.  I

13 mean, that was one thing that was very important, you don't

14 disturb them once they -- you wake them up once and they

15 die.

16                        MR. NORMAN:  Yeah.  And it was a warm

17 day, and they said that this is their job.  They do this all

18 the time.  They were extremely quiet.  They said, you know,

19 it's been such a weird year because of it being so warm

20 lately that everything is a little bit delayed.  They said

21 we shouldn't disturb them.  Now, if it was January when it

22 was negative ten outside, that's going to affect the bats if

23 you go in there and scare them out, wake them up out of

24 hibernation, they will drain their energy.  If all their fat

25 reserves are gone, they have no where to go.
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1              Now it's not that big of a deal until we get

2 some really hard freezes and they're either hibernating or

3 they're all migrating.

4                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  I do have

5 another question.

6              There is a group opposing this, and of coarse,

7 the company wants to mine this.  You know, we have one group

8 of people that want to mine this, basically the right w,a,

9 you know, legally and everything else.  And we have people

10 that say absolutely no, under no circumstances.

11              Have you met with these people, and if so, how

12 many times? What with the mining -- the mining company?

13                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Yeah.

14                        MR. NORMAN:  No.  Ms. Havin and I

15 have not met.  I'm more than welcome to a meeting.  During

16 her testimony, during an AHC meeting in downtown St. Louis,

17 she was asked the same question.  She said no I haven't

18 talked to them.  I thought that's what the lawyers do, to

19 her testimony, and I took that too as like I don't know if I

20 should not either.

21                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Do you see

22 any way possible that this could be mined without harm?

23                        MR. NORMAN:  Safely no.  It just

24 living there my whole life, I know the land, I know the

25 river, I know people, and it's just -- it is just so unsafe.
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1 That's all I can say.

2                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Well, I -- I

3 understand.  I work for Ameren.  I drive a bucket truck, a

4 55-foot bucket truck.  Three times I've been temporarily

5 transferred out here, and I have been down Highway TT and

6 Mill Hill Road with my 55-foot bucket truck.  Yeah, it's --

7 I'm thinking maybe if you didn't do it in the wintertime,

8 maybe if you could shut it down, that would alleviate at

9 least snowy, icy roads.

10                        MR. NORMAN:  Right.

11                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  It would

12 alleviate the disturbance of the hibernating bats.

13                        MR. NORMAN:  Right.

14                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  I'm not

15 speaking on behalf of the wildlife.  I'm speaking on behalf

16 of the residents and the taxpayers, and also the people that

17 want to generate good jobs.

18                        MR. NORMAN:  Absolutely, but --

19                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  That's where

20 we're at.  I'm just wondering if you guys come up with any

21 solution at all with yourselves?

22                        MR. NORMAN:  And in our group, we

23 have division where there is no -- no...

24                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Right.  I

25 mean, I understand you said concrete's not worth one life,
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1 but then again, with the power is out and I go down there

2 and it's icy and everything else, should I not do that?

3                        MR. NORMAN:  Right.  That's your own

4 ethics and philosophy.

5                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  That's where

6 you go.

7                        MR. NORMAN:  Right. We would --

8                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  So --

9                        MR. NORMAN:  We would have to talk to

10 the group before any terms or different conditions that you

11 can put on it, anything like that.  I'm not saying we're not

12 open to it.  I think that we could potentially be open to

13 it.

14                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  I just

15 wondered if there was crosstalk --

16                        MR. NORMAN:  Right.

17                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  -- between

18 the two entities there.

19                        MR. NORMAN:  No, no, sir.

20                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Okay, thank

21 you.

22                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other questions

23 or comments?  [None]

24              Thank you, Mr. Norman.

25                        MR. NORMAN:  Thank you, everyone I'd
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1 please ask for everyone in the audience that's going to talk

2 to please be respectful.  Thank you.

3                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Again, we ask you to

4 keep the evidence to no more than five minutes, and

5 preferably less, that you include evidence not just opinion,

6 and that it not just be redundant.  We don't need 25 people

7 saying the same thing.  We recognize the number of people

8 here.

9              So is there anyone else wishing to speak in

10 opposition?

11              Please state your name and address and sign in,

12 please.

13                        DR. KIM LYNCH:  Dr. Kim Lynch, 2456

14 Highway TT.

15                        [Thereupon, the witness was sworn.]

16              Hello, everyone.  I hope -- I know we want to

17 try to keep it to five minutes, but I also like facts, and I

18 think there's some facts that we've had a lot of emotion.

19 But I think there's some facts that really need to be put

20 out there.  I am a scientist and I thrive on facts.  So I

21 have some that I think are pertinent.  And I'm so happy to

22 see this card because on your card that you sent, you said

23 that you wanted to gather facts concerning the mine so you

24 can make an informed judgment, and that's what I want to

25 help you do.
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1              I am probably part of that that little faction

2 in our group that thinks this mine may be able to run.  I do

3 think there are some problems that people are sticking their

4 head in the sand about and won't talk about, and I really

5 think that if we sit down and talk about them and people

6 give and take a little bit, we might be able to come up with

7 something.  But we need more information and here's why.

8              So my property is bordered by Mill Hill and TT.

9 So you're taking my 40 acres and you're putting it in a vice

10 grip of pollution and noise.  This is a 501(c)(3) all animal

11 rescue.  It is the only no-kill shelter in Franklin County.

12 It does do abandoned and abused.  That's the animals we take

13 in.  So when we get these animals in, they are not in good

14 shape, they are not in good health, and they are not

15 pleasant individuals for the most part until we get ahold of

16 them to get them working.

17              So my first issue is we have horse pastures,

18 and if anybody has horses or livestock, you know you have to

19 rotate those pastures to make sure that you have graze for

20 these individuals.   We do have horses.  We do have donkeys.

21 The idea for us is that we have a nice -- we have four

22 pastures that we rotate.  We have a great pasture right up

23 against Mill Hill, and that would be fine if your horses

24 were there all the time, same horse.  After a while, they'd

25 get used to that noise.
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1              They wouldn't get used to the pollution, but

2 they'd get used to the noise, and it wouldn't be a big deal.

3 But when I have a horse coming in, they generally are three

4 years old, been beaten half its life.  It's an anatomy

5 lesson when you look at it.  All you see is bones, and

6 you're putting it up there in that pasture.

7              That's one of those that you have to rotate to

8 because you need to keep your graze, and you're putting it

9 up there and that truck comes by.  I've got a horse going

10 through barbed wire.  I've got a horse hurting people who

11 are out there volunteering.  I have a horse running me over.

12 Do we try to keep these kids under control?  Yes, but if

13 you're looking at, you know, Chaffy makes it 650 pounds or

14 my Clydesdales that's 2000, it's really hard to say well,

15 baby, just sit still.  It's okay.  All right.  So that's one

16 of my issues there.  I'm worried I'm going to lose the use

17 of that upper pasture and that's use of the land that was

18 bought specifically for this rescue.  So I'm looking at land

19 use loss.

20              We're talking about decibels, and it is true

21 when you're talking about this dredge at the property line,

22 probably 52 decibels.  That's in everything that I'm reading

23 and seeing.  That's not your noise problem, and don't let --

24 don't let people tell you that it is.  The noise problem are

25 the trucks that are coming in and out.  Decibels for a dump
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1 truck, average decibel, is 90.  At 90 to 95 decibels is when

2 hearing loss can start to occur and hearing damage.

3              So if we have 140 trucks a day coming up and

4 down those roads at 90 decibels, that's a problem.  If we

5 have even four trucks coming up and down that road, not so

6 much a problem.  So there's where I might be willing to

7 compromise.  So that's that.

8              Patient stress levels.  So here again, we're

9 going to talk too when we have these kids come in there in a

10 bad way.  So what we try to do, why this property was

11 bought, was that it was calm, peaceful and quiet.  So when

12 an animal is stressed, they release cortisol into their

13 bloodstream.  Cortisol is a chemical that then suppresses

14 your immune system.  If you have high levels of cortisol on

15 a constant basis, then you will slow your healing process,

16 and in some cases stop it.  So then that makes my job really

17 hard.  I'm a good vet, but I'm not that good.   So I really

18 need help from the animal's body along with what I am trying

19 to do.

20              We all know that diesel exhaust is not good.

21 Nobody wants to breathe it.  Okay.  It can cause the same

22 health problems in animals that it does in people,

23 particularly asthma, bronchitis, lung cancers.  If you've

24 ever treated a horse for asthma, it's horrifying.  So I'd

25 like to not have to go through that.
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1              Oh, one think about the lake.  We were talking

2 about if the lake -- we'll get to that, but is the lake

3 good?  It's good for some individuals and not good for other

4 individuals.  So if you're looking at the individuals that

5 are there now, you're taking the land that they're using for

6 graze and the land that they're using to travel and the land

7 that they're using for their local migration routes, and

8 you're now turning it into a lake.  That means that they

9 have to change, which is fine if they've got room to change

10 and that if the resources that they were using there can be

11 found other places that are nearby.  If they can't, then it

12 can be a detriment to some species, and we need to know

13 which species that that's a detriment to.  So there's that.

14                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  I'd ask that you

15 close it pretty quickly. You're over five minutes.

16                        DR. LYNCH:  Well, then go ahead and

17 read it because it -- it's all in there and there's some

18 important things that you need to look at.  None of the

19 facts have been -- have been collected about the bats, none

20 of them.  You didn't have any facts.  So if you're going to

21 make a decision tonight based on facts, you don't have them.

22 And the reason you don't have them, is that it takes a

23 year-long study to get them.  And so we have to look at

24 where the bats' feeding, winter, spring, summer, fall, and

25 then look at it and say okay is this really a problem.  I
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1 mean, they're over here.  Why is this a problem?

2              So I think actually environments impact study

3 would help Havin as much as it would help us because then

4 you're getting the facts of the matter, and maybe people

5 would go oh, my God, don't do that.  Or realize it's okay to

6 do that.  Just don't do this.

7              So we really need to gather facts, and I think

8 the smartest thing you can do is say we need environmental

9 impact study.  The U. S. Fish and Wildlife has not put boots

10 on the ground.  Neither has the Missouri Department of

11 Conservation.  It has bee there.  They don't know.  So

12 they're imagining what's there, and you can't imagine.

13 You've got to go feel it, touch it, see it.

14              Thanks.

15                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Thank you.

16              Please state your name and address and sign in,

17 please.

18                        MR. PAUL PRINCE:  My name is Paul

19 Prince.  I live at 2457 Mill Hill Road.

20                        [Thereupon, the witness was sworn.]

21              A moment ago when you saw the picture on the

22 screen of a car coming out of a driveway and this pristine

23 road that you're looking down there in front of the Bruns'

24 property, that only went about 400 feet.  Two hundred more

25 feet around the bend is where a hill starts, and it's about
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1 like this.  It's quite a hill.  It runs right in front of my

2 property.

3              I've seen people on days where it has snowed

4 just powder have to stop on that hill and back down the road

5 to get another run at it.  I've seen people have wrecks on

6 that road.  I myself have helped people pull their cars out

7 of the ditch because there's no shoulder.  There is the

8 road, Mill Hill, and then there is a ditch, and then there

9 is my land. Then 90 feet away is my fish pond.  I've been

10 there 20 years, and I've seen some accidents.

11              In fact, I'm an expert at accidents.  I was a

12 police officer for 33 years, and I've worked a lot of

13 accidents.  I've worked dump truck accidents.  Dump truck be

14 going around a curve a little bit too fast, the load shifts,

15 and over it goes.  I've seen people pull out of some of

16 these accidents that were so badly mangled.  It's a concern.

17 Just this summer there was a young boy injured severely.

18 Had to be air lifted.  Was struck right there on that

19 pristine straight-away that you saw on the film there.

20 Because people that have young people that drive they have

21 the need for speed.  How well I know that.

22              I was in the army and police officer for 33

23 years, and we had a motto, sacrifice the one for the many.

24 That was our motto on both those agencies I worked for all

25 my life.
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1              Fifteen years I had to have my horses

2 vaccinated for West Nile because of the mosquito.  I've seen

3 them over my pond dipping and diving, and I think we need

4 them.  My wife is a school bus driver, and right at the top

5 of this hill I seen a state trooper almost hit because there

6 is no shoulder and the width of the road at the peak between

7 my property, which is 900 feet from TT, going up the hill,

8 you can't see what's on the other side until you peak.

9              I've seen two pickup trucks almost collide

10 because you can't tell who's coming on the other side until

11 you get to the peak.  There is no way, in my opinion, and

12 I've worked many accidents, I've had to write the calls to

13 accidents.

14              That a school bus operating at 20 miles and

15 hour and a dump truck operating at 20 miles an hour is going

16 to meet at the top of that -- at the peak of that hill

17 successfully and pass one another, they might do it one or

18 two times, but the potential for a busload of children to

19 become injured by a dump truck is astronomical.  I mean,

20 it's going to happen.

21              If somebody did something about the road and

22 widened it, there's no ditch there either.  I mean, it's the

23 narrowest point of the road.  You might get away with it if

24 you redesign the road and widened it.  But in its current

25 situation, the accident will happen.  There is going to be
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1 an accident there with school -- and I'm very passionate

2 about it because my wife is going to be the bus driver.

3              So yeah, I have an interest there, but also I

4 am a professional retired policeman, and I've worked

5 thousands of accidents, thousands of them.  So I know what I

6 am talking about as well.

7              Thank you for listening.  Any questions?

8                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Thank you.  Thank

9 you.

10              Anyone else wish to speak in opposition?

11              Will you please state your name and address and

12 sign in.

13                        MS. JUDI PATTON:  Yes, my name is

14 Judi Patton.  I live on River Bend Road.

15                        [Thereupon, the witness was sworn.]

16              I am pleased to be able to speak to you this

17 evening.  Just dive in, esteemed Board.

18              Trucks, trucks, trucks, trucks, trucks, trucks,

19 trucks, trucks, trucks.  As annoying and inane as that

20 sounded, it's nothing compared to the sound of the non-stop

21 multiple sounds of the trucks passing my house daily. Many

22 times, one can't hear where the sound of one truck ends and

23 the sound of another starts.  As the road shifts from the

24 weight of the trucks, we're also hearing the empty beds

25 bouncing where they're causing inconsistencies in the
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1 flatness of the road.  And it even causes my dogs to jump or

2 bark sometimes.

3              Three weeks into becoming a constant feature on

4 the road, the condition of River Bend is showing major

5 degradation already.  The turn onto Highway 30 from River

6 Bend has totally broken down into huge chunks of pavement

7 and mud, and a week later, many of those chunks were ground

8 into smaller chunks and just being pushed into the mud, with

9 deep, I mean, eight inches to a foot tracks during it.

10              One can easily see the long cracks in the

11 pavement.  There's a sign that those places will very soon

12 be broken into the large chunks, the process starting as it

13 goes across the very large entrance we have onto River Bend

14 from 30, and it's creeping onto Highway 30 as well.

15              In walking the road this past weekend, I saw

16 places where the shoulders are crumbling away, and the

17 telltale cracks warning of imminent crumbling and potholes.

18 And this is only in the three to three and a half weeks that

19 they've been running on it.  From what I've seen on -- on

20 Mill Hill, it isn't far behind River Bend Road in

21 degradation.  What are now -- what are now visible long

22 cracks in the pavement, will soon become -- and I mean soon

23 -- chunks coming out of the road, and this is all within

24 just working on preparation to mine.

25              The size of the second mind speaks to the
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1 damage that will happen.  If there's -- and there's no ifs

2 about it.  It's going to happen.  With River Bend as an

3 example, we can see that it's not years or months we're

4 talking, but it's weeks.  Now, I've heard information this

5 evening that's made me jot down some notes.

6              They're down playing the number of times trucks

7 pass the house. We have kept -- we keep hearing the lowest

8 of 70 loads per day.  That's really 140 times we're going to

9 hear trucks going up and back, and when you figure that in

10 an 8-hour period of time, it is nonstop constant hearing

11 these trucks.  It irks me to no end that I'm paying for the

12 upkeep of these roads when they basically become a driveway

13 for the company.  The constant long rumble, vibrations,

14 bouncing of bed, air brakes, and in our blind curve,

15 downshifting is really an assault on the senses.

16              As of today, we can hear the trucks approaching

17 and leaving for at least a half a mile away, and all the

18 leaves buffering some of the noise haven't fallen from the

19 trees yet.  It's going to be farther that we're going to be

20 able to hear them.

21              My emergency flashlight hanging on the wall

22 where usually found, it vibrates against the wall as the

23 trucks pass.  We were told by Havin that they would be

24 running three trucks, which is an out-and-out lie.  I know

25 of two white trucks, two blue trucks, a red truck with the
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1 Havin name on the door, and suspect another older red truck

2 and a white gray truck possibly to be theirs as well.  So

3 we've just been misled terribly through this whole thing.

4              I know -- excuse me.  There are also other

5 companies' trucks being subcontracted to work with Havin's.

6 It really wouldn't matter whether it was three trucks or a

7 hundred because they each have to pass the house twice per

8 trip, and even breaking that up by using other routes has

9 not slowed down the extreme annoyance.

10              There are also signs of the road degradation on

11 Barton, Mill Hill, Old Cove, AH, and I can't speak for the

12 roads continuing from there because I haven't witnessed them

13 personally.

14              I find it odd that AH, on the Union side, has

15 just been freshly paved as if to accommodate the trucks,

16 while the St. Clair side of things hasn't been touched.  But

17 I heard this evening that they're going to use TT to

18 Commercial.  TT would definitely affect the only no-kill

19 shelter in Franklin County, as we've heard.

20              And Commercial.  How can they trump -- run the

21 trucks through the middle of town.  I don't understand how

22 they can run those trucks through the middle of St. Clair.

23              Once again, I feel like we're paying taxes to

24 basically keep up the driveway to the mine.  I must say, for

25 the most part, the drivers do their best to keep the noise
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1 down inasmuch as --

2                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Ma'am, I would ask

3 you to finish up pretty quick, and we do have your letter

4 here, which I know you're reading verbatim.  But if you go

5 ahead and...

6                        MS. PATTON:  Okay.

7              I definitely think more studies need to be

8 done.  We thought it was a smaller colony.  Now we find it's

9 a huge colony.  More studies need to be done.  This is

10 actually a treasure.

11              Also the DNR permit states that there will be

12 no connection to the river.  That was said about the pits

13 that are across from the current Highway 30 plant, and there

14 are at least two places I can take my canoe in and out of

15 these pits.  It's been years and years since they've been

16 abandoned, and they are connected to the river.  So we are

17 getting this stuff coming out of there.

18              It's been at least 20 years that I know of that

19 I've been there, and there are no repairs done or being

20 done.  Why would I believe it'll be any different on the

21 Mill Hill mine?

22              As to -- we learned tonight that we will --

23                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Ma'am, I'll have to

24 ask you to finish up, please.

25                        MS. PATTON:  Now we learn that we
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1 have to have Saturdays once a month.  That gives us six days

2 a week that we have to listen to this, once a month?  It's

3 disastrous for Lost Hill events, even more than before.

4 What bride wants a background noise of a mine running?  What

5 bride would chance the mine running on their wedding day.

6 Even if you don't see the trucks --

7                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay, ma'am, thank

8 you very much.

9                        MS. PATTON:  -- you will certainly

10 hear them and beyond --

11                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Ma'am, you are over

12 your time.  We give everyone equal amount of time.

13                        MS. PATTON:  I noticed the opposition

14 got a lot more time.

15                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Anyone else wishing

16 to speak in opposition?

17              Please state your name and address the sign in,

18 please.

19                        MS. DANIELLE GRIGGS:  Danielle

20 Griggs, 1210 Ely Road in St. Chair.

21                        [Thereupon, the witness was sworn.]

22              I live next door to Fred Jeffries, who owns the

23 property that's happening at Mine Number 1.

24                        MS. EAGAN:  You can go ahead.

25                        MS. GRIGGS:  Oh, I just wanted to
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1 give a brief statement about the experiences that I have had

2 in the past few weeks since the mine started because I feel

3 like they are pretty similar to the ones, you know, the Mill

4 Hill families will probably experience if this happens.

5              Havin's drivers -- well, there was a speed

6 limit that was set on Ely Road, which is the road in front

7 of my house, at 15 miles an hour, and none of them obey

8 that.  No one enforces that.  The trucks barrel through like

9 a train and shake the house.  The dust is horrendous.  Our

10 kids can't enjoy being outside ever really until dark pretty

11 much.

12              I've had two very close calls going around a

13 blind curve on Ely Road, in just like the last two weeks,

14 and I mean, the road's just not wide enough to accommodate

15 me and a truck in a lot of places.

16              I've also witnessed just two days ago a trash

17 truck and one of Havin's trucks trying to pass each other on

18 a straightaway on River Bend, and they both had to come to

19 almost a complete stop in order to safely get around each

20 other.  I just feel like if you guys could take the time to

21 drive out on Mill Hill Road and the roads around there and

22 just evaluate how you would feel passing a truck on a daily

23 basis, kind of get a feel for what these families are going

24 to go through, maybe you'd understand a little more before

25 making your decision.
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1              Another thing I just want to mention really

2 quick.  When we were going through the hearings of the Ely

3 Road Mine, we were told that we wouldn't hear any of the

4 excavating or any of the mining.  I hear it on a daily

5 basis, and you know, I live up the hill over some bluffs

6 from the mine site.  If I can hear it from that far away, I

7 can imagine that's definitely going to impact the bats and

8 other species in that area.

9              So I'd appreciate it if you guys would give a

10 little bit more time for the studies to happen so we can

11 really see the facts and the possibly the negative effects

12 it would have.

13              So that's all I have.

14                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Thank you.

15                        MS. GRIGGS:  Uh-huh.

16                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Anybody else wishing

17 to speak in opposition?  Anyone else?  [None]  All right.

18              Does the Applicant wish to respond to any of

19 the questions or comments that were made?

20                        MR. LUEKEN:  Mr. Chairman, I got a

21 few PowerPoint things that I need to present for rebuttal.

22 So if I can take a few minutes to set that up.  Okay.

23                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Do you really need

24 to set it up, Cameron, or --

25                        MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah, it's -- it's
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1 pretty important visual for rebuttal.

2                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Which issues are

3 they?

4                        MR. LUEKEN:  The -- it was mentioned

5 about the facts related to the bats, the plant operation

6 time, stuff like that.  That's what -- I want to present

7 those as evidence, Bill.

8                        [Thereupon, a break was taken at

9                   10:50 till 11:00 p.m.; after which, the

10                   the proceedings continued as follows:]

11                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any of the

12 Commissioners have any discussion amongst themselves, any

13 issues?

14                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Yeah, I do

15 have a question.  What does that have pictures of with the

16 holes there?  It's just some pictures were circulated

17 around.

18                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Do you recognize the

19 holes?

20                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  No, not the

21 holes.  I'm just saying what road is that in?  I mean, River

22 Bend Road?

23                         [CROSSTALK]

24                        MS. GRIGGS:   River Bend Road.

25                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  River Bend,
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1 okay.  So that's from the operating mine now?

2                        MS. GRIGGS:  Yeah, those are the --

3                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Russel, you can't

4 talk to them.

5                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Oh, I'm

6 sorry.  Thank you.

7                        MR. LUEKEN:  Okay.  I'm ready to

8 begin when you guys are.  Okay.

9                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Go ahead, Cameron.

10                        MR. LUEKEN:  Thank you, Bill.

11                        MS. EAGAN:  Cameron, I have a

12 question.

13                        MR. LUEKEN:  Yes, sir. Yes, ma'am.

14                        MS. EAGAN:  Is this in the PowerPoint

15 you've already turned in?

16                        MR. LUEKEN:  This is -- no, this are

17 my rebuttal slides.

18                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  What?

19                        MS. EAGAN:  His rebuttal slides.

20                        MR. LUEKEN:  To the questions that

21 have been asked.

22                        MS. EAGAN:  Have you got a copy for

23 us?

24                        MR. LUEKEN:  I do not have a copy for

25 you.
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1                        MS. EAGAN:  Then I don't think we can

2 show them.

3                        MR. LUEKEN:  In the past, the past

4 presentations that we've been doing, that's always been the

5 case.  I've always done this same --

6                        MS. EAGAN:  That separate rebuttal

7 slides?

8                        MR. LUEKEN:  Yes.

9                        MS. EAGAN:  We weren't aware of the

10 that.  It's a question for Mark.

11                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  I know that rebuttal

12 is appropriate.  So I don't know if rebuttal is using the

13 slides for rebuttal, if that's appropriate here or not.

14                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  You need to

15 have a copy tomorrow --

16                        MR. LUEKEN:  That's not a problem.

17                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  -- and for

18 the people that are --

19                        MR. LUEKEN:  That's not a problem.

20 I -- I can do that.

21                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  And next

22 time it's not going to be allowed.

23                        MR. LUEKEN:  I understand.  Okay.

24              So there was a question about this is looking

25 basically at that cross-section I showed you.  There's been
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1 a question about the proximity of the mine.  So basically

2 you're looking directly southwest from the mine plant to the

3 wedding -- the wedding venue.  So this is that cross-section

4 of the question of what it might look like.

5              The traffic.  Potentially there's been a

6 question about the traffic potential.  I guess, you know,

7 Bill has done the calculation there about a -- you know,

8 the -- this facility generating 17,000 trips per day.  I

9 guess if you think about a house on TT, when you look at the

10 trips, that might generate, but just four trips a day,

11 that's a thousands passes on that.  So I guess what I'm

12 trying to compare it to is 17,000 sounds like a lot.  When

13 you look at one home, it generates a thousand trips a day on

14 TT, and it could generate more.

15              I guess when we look at traffic in the area as

16 the wedding venue, the wedding venue during an event, would

17 generate a hundred trips per day.

18              There was a question about this cabin, what

19 this cabin looked like.  That's not really an issue.  Let me

20 go through this here really quick.  Okay.

21              So there was a question earlier about the berm

22 here.  That berm will be located right here.  This is the

23 nearest residence we can identify to the dredge.  So we'd be

24 placing that berm right here.  What that looks like from the

25 road is this.  So like I tried to take a picture of what
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1 that -- the narrowest cross-section of that would be.  So

2 there's no windows on that side of the house.  That's what

3 it looks like from the road in case any of you don't get

4 down there to look at it.

5              The next property, so I took a picture of it

6 this way.

7              The next property is this picture right here,

8 the next property up the road.  This one here you can't

9 really see the house at all.  It's behind these trees here,

10 and you can see the leaves are starting to fall, but that's

11 a long ways away from the road.

12              There was another question about the Kimberly

13 Lynch property, the no-kill shelter.  This is a road.  This

14 is you looking at that barn that she had mentioned and the

15 pasture she mentioned.

16              I known Lyn's going to testify about something

17 about that when I get I get done with my rebuttal on that.

18              There was a question about previously completed

19 mines. In those areas, this is the only portion of those

20 areas that the Meramec aggregate is mined in that area below

21 the Highway 30 bridge.

22              Concerns about the public fast and dangerous

23 trucks.  The reality is these drivers will become familiar

24 with the road because they're going to be working there for

25 Lyn.  They are all CDL holders.  They're drug and alcohol
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1 tested.

2              The impact to local businesses.  This is a

3 slide of the wedding venue in case you had a question about

4 what the event wedding venue looks like.  So this is after

5 the facility looking east towards the river.  The previous

6 mine was located in that area.  The mine that we're applying

7 for today is located to the north and to the west -- or to

8 the northeast.  I'm sorry.

9              So they brought up the issue about the gray

10 bats.  I didn't speak about the issue of the gray bats

11 earlier because I figured that was kind of put to bed, but

12 evidently it's not.  So there was still concern about those.

13 As I mentioned to you before, Jane Ledwin with U. S. Fish

14 and Wildlife has given us approval for this mine

15 application.

16              I also spoke with Jane Markwar with the U. S.

17 Fish and Wildlife, and she identified to me that the gray

18 bat is a migratory bat, and it most likely will not use this

19 cave during the wintertime to hibernate.  She identified she

20 though there was about two caves in Missouri.  Nick Norman

21 mentioned earlier there were eight caves.  I'm not sure

22 whether that's in Missouri or nationally.  I don't know, but

23 she thought it was a very unlikely probability that this was

24 one of the mines that this gray bat hibernates in throughout

25 the wintertime. She said it would have to have very unique
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1 characteristics to do that.

2              And basically her opinion was that this mine is

3 most likely not one of those.  That further speaks to the

4 reason why U. S. Fish and Wildlife issued the permit without

5 further order of a study.

6              So we didn't know where this was at until

7 earlier tonight.  So to the dredge limits of about 930 feet,

8 we were guessing based on previous testimony.  So there's

9 the dimensions to the wedding venue.  I guess when you

10 compare the two of this thing and this thing, I guess that's

11 what I want to talk about, the wedding venue -- if you want

12 to talk about impact, Nick identified this as well so he

13 should understand the impacts.  The way the venue operates

14 at day and night, the bats come out at day and night.  We

15 operate during the day.  We have less of an impact than they

16 have of an impact.

17              The crowds, lights and sound at night.  We're

18 at 53 decibels at 930 feet away about.  Through I think the

19 cave opening that was on the western face, the opposite

20 face, of the Lost Hill face that we're on.  So it's on the

21 opposite side.

22              The vehicular traffic.  He has vehicular

23 traffic at night when the bats are out for his venue  We

24 have no traffic at night.  Our -- our hours of operation do

25 not operate at night.  We don't have a  potential to affect
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1 the bats when they -- if and when they ever come back and if

2 and when they are present.

3              So when you look at this on a timeline, it's

4 easier to see.  During the hours of operation of 7:30 to

5 3:30 when we're operating, the bats are roosting in the

6 caves.  At night when the bats come out, based upon previous

7 testimony identified their people are arriving say at 3:00.

8 That's when the Lost Hill Lake event's package is operating,

9 at night.

10              So if you can look at their website and see

11 that they've got this plan to operate during this time,

12 during the bats' -- when the bats are feeding in the river.

13 So there's conflict with those -- with that business, but

14 there's not a conflict with us during the feeding time.

15              So on a Saturday, the timeline is the same

16 thing.  Actually it's quitting at 12:00.  They're starting

17 at 3:00 say.  Their potential still exists.  There's still a

18 conflict.  Saturdays are just their most popular day.

19              Going back in time, we've heard about these

20 bats.  I just want to give you a brief history about this.

21 This is in '15 --

22                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Cameron, I'd be

23 careful, just to make sure you're staying in rebuttal and

24 not making a new presentation.

25                        MR. LUEKEN:  I understand.  They're
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1 wanting to -- they alluded to -- I guess to answer your

2 question, Bill, the reason why I want to present this to

3 you, they alluded to that we needed to do a bat long year

4 study.  The study has already been done.  The reason why is

5 that they have had the potential to affect these bats

6 because of the way they've been using the property more so

7 than we have.  Meaning that Norman identified there's more

8 bats there.  He's seeing more bats other the years, his

9 venue has been operating and evidently has not affected the

10 bats.

11              Our potential operation doesn't operate during

12 bat feeding time.  So therefore, we feel the studies have

13 already been done.  So that's why I'm just proving it this

14 time.  I'm making the evidence of the time on showing this.

15              So on May 21st of this year, he had fireworks

16 at the event.  That's during the bat feeding time.  It

17 didn't seem to affect the bats.  Like when he says we had to

18 have an information with DNR.  There he addressed disturbing

19 the bats.

20              On 6/10, they filed an appeal accompanied by,

21 as identified earlier tonight, Shelley Pulaski of MDC said

22 the bats feed right off the river where the insects are most

23 abundant.  The very next day, June 11th, they had a venue

24 with fireworks.  So he's identified this concern about bats,

25 but yet, his venue is in conflict with the bats.  So that's
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1 important to say that the fireworks did not affect the bats.

2 They -- they did not leave based on fireworks.  So I can't

3 imagine they're going to leave based upon a mining operation

4 that doesn't conflict with their feeding times.

5              So continuing.  This bat study was done.  They

6 identified they caught a lot of bats.  So that's after this

7 event on June 11th.  So the 7/7 Missouri DNR issues that

8 permit to excavate sand and gravel.  7/5/16 the bats goes

9 into their court date, acknowledge it.  DNR recognized that

10 the study had been done.  They issued the permit anyway.

11              On 8/3, Meramec Aggregates received a Notice of

12 Violations and tended to sue for this -- I mean, they just

13 made this on 8/3.  In that report, they identified a

14 potential take; meaning, that there was an intention to or

15 admission that creates injury.  It's a potential take.

16 That's 8/3.  They threatened to sue or filed notice of the

17 intent to sue.

18              On 8/20, they advertised on their website same

19 thing again, dinner, dancing, sparkle fireworks, and

20 vehicles.  So it appears to be they're not concerned about

21 the bats, and I guess in relationship to how it relates to

22 the study being done, the study's already been done.

23 They've been operating down there, and it hasn't affected

24 the bats at the conflicting times.  We're not at conflicting

25 times.
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1              So there's no reason for us to -- so the Lost

2 Hill Lake events, bats on property, fireworks on the river,

3 day and night activity, crowd like sound doesn't seem to

4 affect the bats.

5              Let me go on to get to the next value or the

6 next issue that arose.  I guess is an this idea, the

7 cross-section, that we're proposing.  There was an idea that

8 it was too thin or it wasn't enough.  That's an idea of the

9 cross-section we're talking about.

10              As it relates to the vibrations, there's not

11 any blasting or jackhammering at this facility.  I mean,

12 it's just going to be a dredge to pit and then processed.

13 In a traditional quarry, there's blasting that occurs.

14 There's smashing of the rock that occurs.  That is not the

15 situation here.  The plant will most -- the plant will not

16 run when it's below, I think, 29 degrees or 30 degrees or

17 whatever freezing.  They have a -- when it's freezing out

18 the plant will not run.  So most likely from December to

19 April when it's freezing outside, the plant will not process

20 materials.  So it's not going to be all year long.

21              As it relates to trucks running, there was

22 testimony given that they could hear these trucks.  The

23 trucks are operating at most of the time when the people are

24 at work. So it's not operating at night.  It's most of the

25 time when people are at work.
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1              I think that's all the rebuttal I have.  Does

2 anyone have any questions of me?  Yes, sir?

3                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  In your

4 rebuttal here, you stated that all trucks will be Havin's.

5 Yet, earlier it was indicated that there would be trucks

6 from other companies or other commercial trucks coming in

7 there to load up and take to other places.

8              Which is one is correct?

9                        MR. LUEKEN:  Yeah, if I stated that

10 wrong, I misstated it.  It's going to be Havin's trucks and

11 other trucks.

12                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Okay.  Also

13 on your slide where you show closeness, I understand you

14 went to the edge of the dredge area, but actually I think

15 the plant and the loading area is going to be closer.

16                        MR. LUEKEN:  The reason why I showed

17 that, I showed that in relation to a home site.  So you're

18 correct.  The plant -- I'm sorry.  Yeah, the plant will be

19 closer to the road than the excavation limit, but I slowed

20 that in relationship to the home site.

21                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Bill?

22                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Can I ask you

23 to correct one thing too about you said I said.  It's not a

24 house -- it does not produce a thousand cars a day or I

25 didn't say 17,000 trucks a day.  That's what you said.  I
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1 said I think we got days and years mixed up.

2                        MR. LUEKEN:  If I said that -- I

3 thought you said 17,000 trucks a year, and I meant a

4 thousand trips per a house a year.

5                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Okay, but you

6 said per day.

7                        MR. LUEKEN:  If I did, I misspoken.

8 I'm sorry.  Thanks for correcting me.

9                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any questions?

10                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  I do have a

11 question.  When you close this plant down, does it stay down

12 for a day, a week, I mean, do you close it down one day and

13 then open it the very next on and off, or how long does it

14 stay closed down when the weather gets cold?

15                        MR. LUEKEN:  Right, right.  So what

16 I'll do is I'll have -- I'll let Lyn come up and answer that

17 question.  I don't know for sure.

18                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Okay.  Thank

19 you.

20                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other questions?

21 [None]

22              Thank you, Cameron.

23                        MS. HAVIN:  Okay.  To answer your

24 question, Russ, typically they shut down when it gets 32

25 degrees or below, and it would probably shut for three or
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1 four months permanently.

2                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Okay.  So

3 this isn't something that can be started up overnight,

4 whatever?

5                        MS. HAVIN:  No.  It can be, but it's

6 seasonal definitely.  The plant, as far as the plant running

7 and the dredge running.  Now, the people would be able to

8 buy material out of there as long as it's 32 degrees or

9 above.  We don't want it to freeze in the beds.  They don't

10 want it to freeze in the beds.  So basically it's got to be

11 32 degrees or above.

12                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Well, that

13 was one of my concerns.  He said, you know, it comes out in

14 the trucks it's moist.  I worry about, okay, you got you

15 got -- you're leaving with a truck full of gravel and water

16 is coming out the back and it freezes on the road and then

17 you've got ice on the road where noplace else is.

18                        MS. HAVIN:  Right.  Well, the

19 material won't be dry -- or it won't be wet when it's in the

20 dump truck.  It's going to be conveyed to a stockpile.  It

21 dries in the stockpile, and then it'll be loaded out.

22                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Okay.

23                        MS. HAVIN:  So it will not wet when

24 it's loaded.

25                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Okay.
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1                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other questions?

2                        MS. HAVIN:  I had just a couple of

3 things I wanted to say.

4              We did contact SCI Engineering, and we had them

5 do a noise and a sound study for us for the Bruns property.

6 We had them set up on the Bruns property, and we were

7 operating across the river at the Jeffries property.  The

8 study suggested that the noise level was that of normal

9 office, of a daily normal office routine.

10              And the dust, he actually put on his report,

11 which I can give you this, Scottie, just stated that it was

12 nonexistent.  So I wanted to make sure that I made that

13 clear.

14              And also not that this really has anything to

15 do with this, but in reference to Hootie's Rescue Haven,

16 they are not the only 501(c)(3) rescue group that's the

17 no-ill shelter, and the only reason I know that is because I

18 am one and I am on Highway TT and Iron Hill Road.

19              So I just wanted to clarify that, and we are

20 501(c)(3) also.

21                        COMMISSIONER BOLAND:  I just have one

22 question for you.

23                        MS. HAVIN:  Yes, sir.

24                        COMMISSIONER BOLAND:  Where you've

25 been operating, you're shutting that down completely, or
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1 will it be a storage yard, or...

2                        MS. HAVIN:  We will eventually -- on

3 Highway 30, is that...

4                        COMMISSIONER BOLAND:  Yeah.

5                        MS. HAVIN:  We will eventually close

6 that.  We will have to sell out all the stockpile area, and

7 then we will move everything over there.  But there will be

8 a loader there until all that material is sold.

9                        COMMISSIONER BOLAND:  So there

10 will -- you will not have two operations going as it was

11 said earlier?

12                        MS. HAVIN:  No.  No, we will not.

13 We're actually going to use the same plant.

14                        COMMISSIONER BOLAND:  Right.  Thank

15 you.

16                        MS. HAVIN:  You're welcome.

17                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other questions?

18                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  And I don't

19 want to put words in anybody's mouth, but I though it was

20 said earlier that it was going to be a new plant and it was

21 going to be a lower-profile plant.  And I thought you just

22 said just now you were going to use the same plant.  So

23 which?

24                        MS. HAVIN:  Okay.  We have an older

25 plant there that we are operating.  Actually it started
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1 Monday, but we have a new one ordered, and it's a portable,

2 and it will be moving into the current location.  And then

3 if we are able to get this permit, we will move that new

4 plant to the Bruns property.  Does at that make sense?

5                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  I did.

6                        MS. HAVIN:  Okay.

7                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  I think.

8                        MS. HAVIN:  It's a trio.

9                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  You're going

10 to be replacing the plant that you have now, and that plant

11 will move?

12                        MS. HAVIN:  Yes, sir.  That's right.

13 It's a -- it's a portable plant.  So we're able to move it

14 easier.

15                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Okay.

16                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other questions?

17  [None]

18              Thank you.

19                        MS. HAVIN:  Okay, thank you.

20                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other

21 discussion, comments, questions from the Commissioners?

22                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  You know I

23 think the most critical thing here is what are the roads

24 like going to or from this area.  I think that impacts the

25 county the most and the residents of the county the most of
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1 what are the truck travel roads.  Do we have low limit --

2 weight limit, box culverts or bridges either on the County

3 roads and State roads, and how wide is the driving surfaces

4 on the County roads.

5              So I wonder if there should -- and I don't -- I

6 don't know how to say a traffic study because it's not

7 really a traffic study, but what are the impacts going to be

8 on the -- on the roads and are the roads suitable?  And

9 we've got an expert here I hope.

10                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Any other questions

11 comment?

12                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Well, I

13 think the travel is the issue that I see at least on the

14 discussion taking place here.  I mean, that -- you go up to

15 top of -- I'm familiar with Mill Hill.  When you go up to

16 the top of there, you have a blind spot there.  Okay.

17              So when trucks come over the top of that hill,

18 when you're going down the hill, they also have a blind spot

19 when they are going to go down the hill.  Okay.

20              So that concerns me to the extent I don't know

21 if there could be a study that would indicate something.

22 When some talk about the road being somewhat deteriorated,

23 that's not really true because on most of the county roads

24 that are in that area, they are chip and seal.

25              Mill Hill is an asphalt paved road.  Okay.  So
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1 it is one of the better -- better surfaces that I've

2 familiar with, at least over in that area.  But it still

3 concerns me when you have some blind spots there.  And I am

4 not sure exactly how that be addressed.

5              When I listen and I hear that Havin would have

6 control of the trucks and I think, Ron, you raised the

7 question that I also heard and I was going to raise as well.

8 That's if you're going to have an operation in which you're

9 going to have outside sales of the material, Havin will not

10 have control of the trucks.  It will be whoever is coming to

11 pick up a load of the aggregate.

12              That does concern me because you can

13 potentially say that Havin can go over to TT, but you come

14 around that sharp turn there at Lost Hill, that is an

15 extremely sharp turn.  Okay.  But she's talking about blind

16 spots.  So anyway, and I just hope that some of that is

17 looked at by the Review Committee and check that all out and

18 see what your thoughts are before coming back with a

19 recommendation here.  Okay.  So...

20                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Thank you.

21              Any other discussion?

22                        COMMISSIONER BOLAND:  Something was

23 mentioned about Highway O and the rock quarry, and I mean,

24 you know, I mean, they have their own trucks come in there

25 on a daily basis, plus everybody else.  I mean, I don't know
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1 how you possibly limit somebody to their own trucks, you

2 know.  And that's what happened on Highway O, and Highway O,

3 you drive it all the time, Bill.  It's -- you know, it's a

4 tough road.

5                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Yeah.  I -- I

6 can't disagree with that at all.  You know and Highway O

7 doesn't have shoulders on it, but the -- by the same token,

8 you know, is there a way to correct the truck problem?  The

9 way to correct is probably with the speed limit.  I mean,

10 speed will correct a lot of things.  It's not, you know, I

11 would think that speed limits, as far as when you do sight

12 distances and all those things, speed limits take into

13 account all -- in all those things, do they not?

14                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  The whole

15 problem is if they drive the speed limit.  That's problem

16 the number one problem in this country right now.  There's

17 nobody driving the speed limit, the posted speed limit.  You

18 know, and we as engineers have no control over that.

19              You set the speed for the prevalent condition

20 and then if speeding occurs, you need enforcement, you know.

21 Otherwise bad things happen, but speeding is an inherent

22 problem not only on county roads, but the city streets. It's

23 interstate, state-maintained roads.  It doesn't take much to

24 go out on any roadway anywhere and see speeding.

25              So you can design it, but to the -- you try to
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1 design it to the most prevalent conditions and set the

2 speed, but then it's up to everybody to drive that speed.

3 You know, that's a tough one.  That's a tough one for the

4 brethren in my profession to deal with because of the fact

5 that, yeah, you say here's what you get into -- now I'm

6 preaching.  Sorry, but what you get into is that most

7 roadways are designed with a factor of safety, to try to --

8 okay.  You want to have a 70 mile, you go 80.  Well, then

9 the argument is, especially from the political side of

10 things, is well, we'll set the speed limit up to 75 or 80.

11 Well, that doesn't solve anything.  What happens is you set

12 it at 75, they're going to go 80.  So just that mindset

13 we're in in this country.  That's a shame.

14              But I kind of agree with the discussion that we

15 need to look at the roadways that are going to be used and

16 see if there's anything that needs to be done.  I'm just

17 going to tell you now, that relentless pounding of trucks is

18 going to take a toll on both Mill Hill and TT.  Just state

19 that right now.  It's going to -- it's going to happen.  So

20 whether or not there's something that can be done about it,

21 you know, as a condition or anything else, that's something

22 we got to explore.

23                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Thanks, Ron.

24              Any other questions, discussion?  If not, the

25 Chair would entertain a motion obviously could move to Old
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1 Business or the Review Committee.  And if someone wants to

2 move it to the Review Committee, I would suggest leaving the

3 file open for a couple of weeks again so Commissioners can

4 get out in that area and look at it, if they haven't as yet.

5                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:

6 Mr. Chairman, I'll make a motion then that we move File

7 160220 to -- or send it to the Review Committee, and that

8 such file be left open for three weeks from the date of this

9 hearing.

10                        COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  I'll second

11 that.

12                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  We have a motion and

13 a second to send File 160220 to Review Committee, and the

14 file will remain open for three weeks from today.

15              All in favor signify by saying aye.

16                        COMMISSIONER VOSS:  Aye.

17                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Aye.

18                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Aye.

19                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Aye.

20                        COMMISSIONER BOLAND:  Aye.

21                        COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Aye.

22                        COMMISSIONER TOBBEN:  Aye.

23                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Aye.

24                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Aye.

25                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Opposed?  [None]
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1              The motion is carried.

2              Preliminary Plats.  We have none.

3              Planning and Zoning Commission Forum.

4 Discussion regarding land use regulations, including Special

5 Events.

6                        MS. EAGAN: I think I gave you all a

7 copy of what I've been working on for the past month.  I had

8 a copy written.  I sent it to Mark.  Mark and I talked about

9 it.  I made a few changes.  I sent it to two people in the

10 Highway Department to read and see if they understood where

11 I was going with it, and if there are any, you know, glaring

12 mistakes of it made sense.  They both said they understood

13 it.

14              I don't want to get in the nuts and bolts of it

15 tonight because that would be for a meeting.  But if there

16 is anything that stands out to you that you think I need to

17 relook at before I submit it as a regulation change, let me

18 know.  Bill McLaren did call me today -- or yesterday.

19                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Today.

20                        MS. EAGAN:  And we talked about some

21 things that I'm going to look at.  He made the point that

22 our -- our minimum acreage requirement of one acre for an

23 indoor special occasion facility and our setbacks for

24 parking may not be feasible.  So I am going to look at

25 either the acreage requirement or the setback requirement
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1 and kind of do some math, draw some stuff out and maybe come

2 back with different things for that.

3                        COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Scottie, how did

4 you come up with the numbers you have here?  That was my one

5 question.

6                        MS. EAGAN:  For the setbacks?

7                        COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Yeah.

8                        MS. EAGAN:  Oh, the acreage

9 requirement?

10                        COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Is that

11 somewhere else, because I couldn't find it anywhere else?

12                        MS. EAGAN:  No. In all honesty, these

13 were probably the hardest regulations I've ever had to write

14 because there are none out there that are -- that I could

15 find.  I think I found one for ceremonies only and one for

16 special events that I could kind of look at and write ours.

17 But other than that, it's hard to come by regulations

18 specifically for special occasions.

19              And I used to call them special occasion

20 facilities.  So if you read that in here, that's a mistake.

21 I just didn't delete it everywhere.  So some of the permits

22 say SOP and some of them say SOFP.  That's because -- I have

23 to delete that.

24                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Let me,

25 and there's things that I saw in here.  Scottie, I thought
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1 you did a very nice job.  On number 2, on the first page, on

2 letter A -- I'm sorry -- C2A.  If the event does exceed 300,

3 a conditional use permit is required, shouldn't that be

4 something along the lines because it almost seems like after

5 the fact.  Wouldn't it better to say along the lines if the

6 event expects to exceed or is planned to exceed 300 people a

7 conditional use permit is required instead of if it exceeds

8 it will be?

9              That was one thing I saw that I thought the

10 wording was a little bit confusing.

11                        MS. EAGAN:  Okay.

12                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  The

13 other thing on -- on going over to D, number four, there you

14 have detailed site plan, drawn by an engineer.

15                        MS. EAGAN: Uh-huh.

16                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  And it

17 appears you put i special occasions, I'm talking about those

18 may only have a wedding or a corporate event or something as

19 a special occasion as well, I'm not sure I would agree that

20 every one of those would need to have a drawing by an

21 engineer.  I would suggest to you maybe that maybe it ought

22 to say drawn by an engineer if required by Planning and

23 Zoning Department.

24                        MS. EAGAN:  And then I'll tell you I

25 would require it for all of them because I want to see all
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1 of this information on it, and I want to see -- I want to

2 see the sized of the parking.  I want to see the width of

3 the driveway.  I don't want just to use the proximate

4 drawings on paper that people give me.

5                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  That

6 would be up to you the way I have it worded, if required by

7 -- it's required by P and Z Department, not by us but by

8 you.  Okay.

9              So if you're going to take that approach, it

10 still would be fine, but I can -- I believe there's probably

11 some occasions in which there already is -- is going to be a

12 very event, okay, and you may get to the point of saying I'm

13 not sure we would need a -- okay, just those occasions that

14 could occur.  Otherwise, what I'm suggesting you have that

15 means of doing it anyway.

16              That would just be my suggestion, Mr. Chairman.

17                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Bill?

18                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  I don't want

19 to speak for Scottie and all.  I think she's worked really

20 hard on this, so I don't -- but I think that you have the

21 same idea I had originally, and I asked her that this is not

22 for a single event.  This is for a venue that would be up to

23 300 people.  So I'm like, do I have to get a special -- do I

24 have to get a special event permit for each?  Would I have

25 to have three for a weekend if I was doing something three
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1 times a weekend, and it's to eliminate that it would be --

2 it wouldn't come to -- an I'm putting words in Scottie's

3 mouth.  I apologize, but it would not -- this would replace

4 a CUP as long as it was less than 300 people.

5              So...

6                        MS. EAGAN:  Yeah, the application I

7 handed out -- again, this is just a rough thing that I kind

8 of put together last minute of what I would require on the

9 application and with the application.  But on the

10 application, I have that, you know, I want a description of

11 all uses at this location.  So if they have weddings,

12 corporate events, holiday parties, I want a list of all

13 those so it's a one-time permit for all those events.

14                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  See

15 though, I was -- I'm interpreting it maybe slightly

16 different than what you just said because I --

17                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  And I just

18 want it in a -- I did too originally.

19                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  In an

20 event that has over 300 people, if that event is going to

21 take place with over a three-day period, but it's the same

22 event, okay, then you're going to have 100 on one day and

23 150 and another hundred on the next day, that's over.

24                        MS. EAGAN:  No.  It would be a single

25 event.  So if you have a wedding facility and you're saying



 PUBLIC HEARINGS  11/15/2016

www.midwestlitigation.com Phone: 1.800.280.3376 Fax: 314.644.1334
MIDWEST LITIGATION SERVICES

Page 143

1 you are having 350 people, that's what your -- that's what

2 your maximum number of guests at that facility, I would

3 require you to get a condition use permit.

4                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  It would be

5 based on occupancy?

6                        MS. EAGAN:  Right.

7                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Occupancy,

8 permitted occupancy.

9                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  But if

10 you're going to have a potential flee market -- just using

11 that as an example --

12                        MS. EAGAN:  That doesn't fall under

13 this.  This is strictly weddings, corporate events, holiday

14 parties, stuff of that, birthday parties, stuff of that

15 nature.  Flee markets, circuses, all that stuff does not

16 fall under this.

17                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  That

18 probably clarified it.  Thank you.

19                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  I've got a

20 couple of followups too.  You know I think item number 2C, I

21 don't think it's reasonable to say somebody has to be gone,

22 that the staff has to be gone 45 minutes after the event

23 ends.  I think that there's, you know, help clean-up

24 reasons.  You know, an event can generate quite a bit of

25 trash to pick up and clean up and put away.  And I think
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1 that's probably more than -- more restrictive than what it

2 should be.  I don't think that an event can be cleaned up in

3 45 minutes and be left the way it should for an indoor or an

4 outdoor event.

5              So I kind of think that we need a little bit

6 more latitude there.  Item D, and Scottie addressed that,

7 the one-acre minimum.  If an acre is 212 feet by 212 feet,

8 it would take a hundred feet off all four sides, we got 20

9 feet -- 20 square feet left in the middle.  So I don't think

10 the one acre works. and I talked to Scottie about that.

11              Item 3, the temporary or permit structure

12 should have a commercial building permit.  I think that

13 along with a commercial building permit, any building that's

14 being used, even if it's a preexisting, the building should

15 have as a mandatory of at least one inspection to make sure

16 that you know it's up to commercial standards, even if

17 somebody doesn't think they have to go get a permit.

18              And I think that's most of -- of what my

19 comments were.

20                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  Not the go

21 back and re-dredge everything here -- going along with the

22 gravel operations, re-dredge -- but they're talking about

23 coming in for an application.  If you think that you're

24 going to ever do a I function that has more than a wedding

25 that has more than 350 people, then that's what you apply
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1 for.

2                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Exactly.

3                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  Okay.

4                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  But I applied

5 for --

6                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  It's not by

7 the event.  It's not -- you know, it's not by event.  It's

8 by if I want to have an indoor facility that may at some

9 point in time hold a ceremony or wedding that has 375 people

10 attending, then that's what I have to apply for, or I never

11 can do that.

12                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  If you

13 have a corporate gathering, okay --

14                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  It's the

15 same building though.

16                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Right,

17 but that's going to be over a three-day period, but each day

18 you don't have -- you don't have any all -- each day you

19 have less 300 people.

20                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  It doesn't

21 matter.

22                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  But

23 over all three days, it adds up to 350.

24                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  Okay. But

25 what have you applied for?
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1                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  That's

2 my question in regards to does that mean that you do not

3 have to go with the special use permit if -- because each

4 day is considered separate or is each event considered

5 separate?

6                        MS. EAGAN:  It' basically means if

7 you want to have a wedding facility, corporate event,

8 whatever, special occasion facility, you get one permit, and

9 on that permit, I will ask what is the maximum number of

10 guests --

11                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  Ever use.

12                        MS. EAGAN:  -- you will see in that

13 building at one time or on that property?  If it's under

14 300, that's fine.  Each event is different.  I don't care if

15 it's a wedding that lasts two days and they have less than

16 300 people or if it's a wedding that has 300 people on one

17 day and that's it.

18              If they say they're going to have 350, then if

19 they don't fall under this anymore, they have to get a

20 conditional use permit through you guys.

21                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  But if I --

22 if I want to do what you're saying, Jay, and I want to have

23 a facility that sometime I may have a wedding that has 375

24 people, but on this one given event, it's a corporate

25 function and I'll only have one, 150 one day, 150 the next
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1 day, and 150 the next day, that doesn't matter.

2              I still have to have the original permit that

3 says 375 people.  But so it doesn't make -- but then again,

4 if I have less than 300 -- that's what I tell her -- and I

5 have 150 one day, 150 the next day and 150 the next day, I'm

6 under 300 at any one time.

7                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  So each

8 day is the number --

9                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  It's how

10 many people do you have at the facility at a time.

11                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  At the

12 facility?

13                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  At the

14 facility at a time.

15                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  That

16 answered my question.

17                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  Yeah.

18                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  At the

19 facility, right.

20                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  At the

21 facility, and that's why it's -- it's not what you intend to

22 do with it today.  It's what you intend to do with it at the

23 maximum possible.

24                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  I

25 thought we were talking about it each event.
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1                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  No.

2                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  But

3 it's on -- at any given time at the facility.

4                        MS. EAGAN:  Yeah.

5                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Anything else?

6 [None]

7              Okay.  If everybody would just look those over

8 and we'll leave it under Planning and Zoning Commission

9 Forum for next month then and go over it again.

10                        MS. EAGAN:  Do you want to leave it

11 as a forum, or do you want me to come back with it as a

12 proposal?

13                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Well, I guess that's

14 up to the Commissioners.  It looked like there were enough

15 changes that it might be good to look at again, unless

16 you -- it's up to you if you want to come back to the

17 proposal, you have to do the work.  So...

18                        MS. EAGAN:  I would propose to come

19 back with it as a proposal so we can actually sit there and

20 discuss it nut and bolts rather than just these general

21 things.

22                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  But that's a good

23 proposal.  All right.  If you'd please come back with a

24 proposal that's whatever you think is easiest and best.

25 We'll do that.
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1              Planning Director's Report.

2                        MS. EAGAN: I know last month we

3 talked about getting you guys maps so you can start looking

4 at your individual townships for rezoning.  These

5 regulations kind of took precedent.  So we are going to wait

6 on that until we can get this cleaned up and into the Code.

7 And then we'll look at doing that again, but that's it.

8                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Okay.

9              I guess we're not going to put together a

10 committee for the Planning and Zoning Commission Christmas

11 party?

12                        MS. EAGAN:  Wish you would.

13                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  If there's nothing

14 else, the Chair would entertain a motion to adjourn.

15                        COMMISSIONER BOLAND:  So moved.

16                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Mr.

17 Chairman, before you do that, can I -- I will not be here

18 next week, and I'm going in for a back operation.  Okay.  So

19 I will not be here at the next meeting and the January will

20 be --

21                        MS. EAGAN:  Iffy.

22                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Will be

23 so-so.  Okay.

24                        CHAIRMAN EVANS: All right.  Jay, we

25 wish you well on your procedure.
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1                        COUNTY ATTORNEY VINCENT:  Since he's

2 the vice chairman, you can't have anything happen to you.

3                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  That's right.  I

4 wish you very well on your procedure.  You know, I'm tired

5 of you taking up the handicap spots.  All right.

6              We have a motion to adjourn.  Do we have  a

7 second?

8                        COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Second.

9                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Motion and a second

10 to adjourn.  All in favor signify by saying aye.

11                        COMMISSIONER VOSS:  Aye.

12                        COMMISSIONER McLAREN:  Aye.

13                        COMMISSIONER WILLIAMS:  Aye.

14                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  Aye.

15                        COMMISSIONER BOLAND:  Aye.

16                        COMMISSIONER HAIRE:  Aye.

17                        COMMISSIONER TOBBEN:  Aye.

18                        COMMISSIONER SCHULTEHENRICH:  Aye.

19                        COMMISSIONER McCREARY:  Aye.

20                        CHAIRMAN EVANS:  We're adjourned.

21                        [Thereupon, the proceedings concluded

22                   at 11:36 p.m.]

23                             o8o

24

25
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6 hereby swear that the aforementioned was held at the time

7 and in the place previously described.

8              IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my

9 hand.

10                        _________________________________

11                        Patsy A. Hertweck, Court Reporter

12                        Notary Public, State of Missouri

13

14 My Commission Expires:

15 August 26, 2018
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